Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regicnal Transit Autherity Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, November 17, 2020 in the Board Room
of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items
and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.

In accordance with House Bill 197 of the 133rd General Assembly, signed by the Governor of the
State of Ohio on March 27, 2020, the March 9, 2020 order of the Governar of the State of Ohio
declaring a public health emergency and the April 30, 2020 order of the Director of the Ohio
Department of Public Health prohibiting any gathering of ten (10) or more people, this meeting

members of the public. Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the
Board Room. The meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www.riderta.com/board),
on RTA's Facebook page, and RTA's Twitter page.

9:00 AM. Qperational Planning & Infrastructure Committee

* 2021 Service Pian
o Presentation on the 2021 Service Plan.

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee
o Quarterly Management Report — Review of 3rd quarter 2020 results.

Audit, Safety Compliance And Real Estate Committee
+ Internal Audit Quarterly Report - Review of 3rd quarter 2020 audit work.

Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached.

P ‘— H
india L. Birdsong -
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



AGENDA
RTA OPERATIONAL PLANNING & INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, November 17, 2020

Comimittee Members: Mr. Terence P. Joyce, Chair
Rev. Charles . Lucas, Vice Chair
Mayor Michael P. Byrne
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss
Ms. Luz N. Fellat
Mr. Leo Serrana

L Rolf Call

If. 2021 Service Plan — A presentation on the 2021 Service Pian.

Prazenter
= Joel Freilich, Director - Service Management

. Adjourn



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Dennis M. Clough, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdsong -
General Manager/Chief Executive QOfficer @
Date: November 12, 2020 -
Subject; 2021 Service Management Plan

At the November 17, 2020, meeting of the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee,
staff will present the 2021 Service Management Plan (SMP), as required by the Board-adopted
Services Code. Each year, the SMP is prepared in close coordination with development of the
General Manager's Recommended Budget.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

tLB/JBF



AGENDA
RTA ORGANLIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, November 17, 2020

Committee Members: Rev. Charles P, Lucas, Chair
Mr. Justin M. Bibb
Mayor Michael P. Byrme
Mr. Leo Serrano
Mayor David E. Weiss

l. Roll Cail

il. Quarterly Management Report — Review of 3™ quarter 2020 resuits.

Presenter;
» India |, Birdsong, General Manager, Chief Executive Office

. Adjourn



AGENDA
RTA AUDIT, SAFETY COMPLIANCE AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, November 17, 2020

Committee Members: Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss - Chair
Rev. Charles P. Lucas - Vice Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Ms. Valarie J. McCall
Mayor David E. Weiss

R Roli Call

I internal Audit Quarterly Report — Review of third quarter 2020 audit work

Presenter. Anthony Ghanem, Manager of Internal Audit

. Adjourn



VI,

VI

VHI.

A

X1

X,

XV,

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, November 17, 2020

(This meeting will commence after the committee meetings)

Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting

Approval of the Tuesday, October 27 2020 Board Meeting minutes

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items can be phoned in using the dial
in information or submitted via form at www.riderta. com/events by selacting the
meeting date:

Phone: 440-276-4600
Board Governance Committee repart

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
« Chair: Mr, Terence P. Joyce

Organizaﬁonal, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
s Chair; Rev. Charles F. Lucas

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
» Chair: Karen Gabriel Moss

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
« Chair: Valarie J. McCall

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
« Bopard Liaison: Justin M. Bibb

Ad Hoc Committee reports
* Ad Hoc Paratransit Commiftee - Rev, Charles P. Lucas, Chair
» Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Justin M. Bibb, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

introduction of resolutions:

A, 2020-83 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-091 with Norfleet Distributors, LLC
for the furnishing of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), as specified and
as required, for a period of one year not to exceed $110,160.00 (General



RTA Board of Trustees

Novem
Page 2

ber 17, 2020

Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

B. 2020-84 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-100 with MWL Brasit Rodas &
Eixos LTDA. for the furnishing of up to 400 28-inch steel wheels for Tokyu
Heavy Rail vehicles, as specified and as required, for a period of one year in
an amount not to exceed $335,944.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget)

C. 2020-85 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-125 with Hatzel & Buehier, Inc. for

XV,

Project 60F — West 30" Street Substation Rehabilitation, in an amount not to
exceed $1,557,327.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

D. 2020-86 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-129 with Electronic Data
Magnetics, Inc. for the purchase of magnetic fare media, as required, for a
period of three years, with two additionat one-year options, in an amount not
to exceed $552,987.00 for the base term and in an amount not to exceed
$184,329.00 for each option year, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$921,645.00 (General Fund, Revenue Department budget)

E. 2020-87 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-148 with CBTS, LLC, DBA CBTS
Technology Solutions, LLC to provide Next Generation Telephone Service
for one year through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative
Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program, for a price not to exceed
$204,602.16 (General Fund, Information Technology Department budget)

F. 2020-88 — Authorizing an increase to contract no. 2018-090 with Cintas
Corporation No. 2 to revise the scope of services for rental and maintenance
of shop uniforms in an amount NTE $300,837.20 for the remaining base
contract and in an amount NTE $150,418.60 for each of two option years,
for a new total contract amount NTE $1,589,105.46 (General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget)

G. 2020-89 — Repealing Chapters 1084, 1085 and 1086 and enacting a new
Chapter 1086 of the Codified Rules and Regutations of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

H.  2020-90 — Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to
grant to the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District (‘NEQRSD") a
permanent subterranean right-of-way and easement to access and maintain
the shaoreline storage tunnel on parcel known as Cuyahoga County
Permanent Parcel Number 108-16-019, located at the Dupont Bus Loop on
Dupont Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio, for the price of $28,800.00

Interim Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

A.  General Fund Revenue — status as of October 31, 2020 versus 2019 actualy



RTA Board of Trustees
November 17, 2020
Page 3

XVl
XVII.
XVIH.
XIX.

XX

XX,

XXl

General Fund Revenue - status as of October 31, 2020 versus the 2020
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2020, actual receipts
through November 2020 ***TQO BE DELIVERED AT A LATER DATE*""
tnventory of Treasury Investments as of October 31, 2020

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Band Retirement Fund (cash basis) as
of QOctober 31, 2020

F.  Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through Qctaber 31,
2020

Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of October, 2020
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of October 31, 2020

mo O

=0

General Manager's Report

President's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on non-agenda items can be phoned in using the

dial in information or submitted via form at www.riderta.com/events by selecting
the meeting date:

Phone: 440-276-4600

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 15, 2020
in the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth
atreet, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's
Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the
public. Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board
Room.

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
8:04 a.m., October 27, 2020

Present: Clough (Chair}, Lucas (Vice Chair), Bibb, Byrne, Joyce, McCali, Moss, Peliot, Serrano,
Whaiss

Not present: None

Also Present: Anderson, Bartlome, Benford, Birdsong, Bitto, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Davidson,
Feliciano, Fester, Fields, Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Harris, Johnson, Pickett, Schipper, Taliey

Mayor Clough called the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m. The secretary called the roll and reported that
ten (10) board members were present. This meeting was conducted by teleconference for members
of the Board in accordance with House Bill 197 of the 133rd General Assembly, signed by the
Governor of the State of Ohio on March 27, 2020, the March 9, 2020 order of the Governor of the
State of Ohio declaring a public health emergency and the Apri! 30, 2020 order of the Directar of the
Ohio Department of Public Health prohibiting any gathering of ten (10) or more people. This meeting
was live-streamed on RTA's Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and members of

the public.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this

Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Minutes

Mayor Clough stated that the minutes from the September 1, 2020 Special Board Meating and
September 15, 2020 had been previously distributed and reviewed and asked whether there were any
additions and/or corrections. There were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Rep. Bride Rose Sweeney
Rep. Sweeney represents the 14 House District that includes Ward 16 and 17 of Cleveland,

Brookpark, Brooklyn, Parma Heights, and Middleburg Heights. She is in her first term, but is not new
to politics or the State House. In her first term, she was appointed to the Finance Committee that
hears the transportation budget and authored the $70 Bl state budget. There is not much happening
at the State House with the Election around the corner, They have sessions scheduled six days after
the Election. Any bill that doesn't get passed at the end of the year will die. A lot is going on with the
Pandemic and with Rep. Larry Householder being removed due to bribery charges and a new
speaker appointed by a one point margin. This plays a factor in how he is trying to govern.
Depending on how the election goes, will dictate the upcoming bifls. She is hopeful the delegation
stays bipartisan, working towards getting some forward thinking legislation. The capital budget, which
is money that is put through the General Revenue Fund and set aside for the off year for state
departments to give out capital improvements, is hopeful. She has seen projects creating investment
and how much public transit is a part of that. The more they can connect the work that RTA does to
fund other projects that impact the bigger picture is important. She is hearing the budget will be less
than the original $150 Mi. It is bonded money and not from the GRF.

There will be a new General Assembly with term limits. They have eight-year term limits. Itis fast
paced. There is an influx of new people who are new at State government. Within the first three



RTA Board of Trustees
October 27, 2020
Page Z of 10

months, they are voting on the Transportation Budget and the $70 Bl biennial budget six months after
that. The more RTA and the delegation can stick together in the first six months and be bipartisan,
the better. It seems like the make-up of the House is turning into urban versus rural. When they got
the historic increase of $70 Ml in the State annual budget, individuals were against it because they
don't rely on public transportation in their areas. She referenced an article that said that Columbus,
Cincinnati and Cleveland make up more than half of the entire State’s economic gross revenue, which
is essential. She talked on the House floor about the brain drain in Ohio and how her millennial
friends have moved to other states that are more millennial friendly and more transit-friendty.

She will be on the Finance Committee again next General Assembly. Hopefuily it will be a different
budget. Last year, they saw great bipartisan support because of the increase of the gas tax, They
had to come over for Democrat support. She is a Democrat and she agreed to that is for the increase
in public transit doltars. She is not sure that will be the same dynamic having the increase already
there and having a budget that may be cut compared to the iast biennial budget where before COVID
they had more revenues coming in. The fight was about where to invest and where to cut. She asked
for helping keep the Cuyahoga County delegation strong and bipartisan,

Mayor Clough thanked her for her continued support. A number of representatives in the State have
recognized the importance of public transit and RTA has received funds in the past and want to stay
in line to receive these funds, Ms, Birdsong asked if there are any recommendations that can help
support her mission in the House. Rep. Sweeney emphasized starting early and the election will
determine some things. There will be new people serving for the first time and the process is fast
after being elected. They vote on the transportation budget and State budget early in their term. She
will encourage her colleagues to rally people together. There are more rural representatives, but we
disproportionally have a bigger impact on the State’s budget. That message from Cuyahoga County
needs to be louder and clear. She suggested one on one galls with them, sending a letter to the
Speaker and Chair of the Finance Committee or working with the other major cities that have similar

missions.

Public Comments — Agenda tems

1. India Pierce Lee -~ Cleveland, OH ~ She is the Senior Vice President for the Cleveland
Foundation. The Cleveland Foundation is proud to partner with RTA. They have had a long
term relationship with RTA. Their free ride sponsored day in 2014 to celebrate their
Centennial, is still the most talked about gift to the community, We need to give access to
people to go vote who don't have transportation. Ms. Birdsong said there will be an update
later in the meeting about the free fare day and looks forward to presenting the resolution to
the Board later on the agenda. Mr. Bibb thanked Ms. Birdsong and the Cleveland Foundation,
This is an idea that he, Jose Feliciano and others in the community have been discussing for a
while. He will be happy for Cleveland to join cities across the State and country to offer free
fares. Mayor Clough thanked the Clevetand Foundation for making this grant available.

2. Libby Schubert — Cleveland, OH - With the major development plan to improve the GCRTA
and increase the quality of services, an easy way to free up funding for that project is by
defunding the Transit Police and reallocating that money back into improving the experiences
of riders. On Thursday, three years after the historic Groves Decision ruled armed fare
enforcement unconstitutional; Clevelanders for Public Transit is holding a virtual event to tatk
about alternatives to Transit Police. We invite the GCRTA board members to attend this event
to hear from riders about their experiences with Transit Police and our demands to create a
safer and more effective transit system. Register for the event at clefortransit.org




RTA Board of Trustees
October 27, 2020
Page 3 of 10

3. Nathan Jurcago -- Cleveland, OH - Hi, | have noticed an absurd amount of allacation of the
budget for transport has been going to the transit palice over the past few years, 1, as well as
mary others who have used and still use RTA's services, feel like these are unnecessary
expenditures and the money would be more hefpful funding other areas used for strengthening
the community. { hope you will join the board meeting on the 29th where this tapic will be
presented for further discussion. You can RSVFP at clefortransit.org.

Cormmmitiee Reports

There were no committee reports.

Community Advisory Committee {CAC)

There was no CAC report.

Ad Hoc Commitiee Reports

Nick Davidson, Director of Paratransit gave a presentation on Paratransit Operations improvements.
Operational priorities include Leverage Scheduling Technolagy, Improve the Customer Service
Experience (Reduce call wait time), Modernize Communication Technology, Increase on tima
performance (OTP) and Reduce on-hoard travel times (OBT). Loaoking at the past year for the
reservation call wait time, last September, the average hold time to reach a reservation agent was a
fitle aver 30 minutes. As of September 2020, it was 34 seconds. They were down to sevan minutes
before COVID. Since then, they are under a minute. The ridership and calls in September were twice
as rnuch as that of April. They implemented changes while the call volume was low, to make
sustainable progress for the future. The nationa! standard is to have 95% of calls answered within
two minutes and 99% of calls answered within five minutes so RTA is above the nationafl standard.

Improvements include call wait times reduced by 98%, additional customer service-training,
cancellations handled by call center and expanded hours of operations. They used to leave
messages for cancellations, but now that is handled by an agent, Previous call hours were 8:30 a.m. ~
4:00 p.m. Currently they are 7:30 am. —- 4:30 p.m. |n addition, they added two reservationist
positions, The dispatch call wait time last fall was nearly 10 minutes, but it is now around 1 minute.

it is higher than the reservation center, but it is abave the national average. But the dispatch handies
high volume traffic and maintain the vehicles on the road.

Other changes to affect both call centers include subscription management (standing trips where
customer does not have to call in to schedule the trip), enhanced call monitoring for accuracy,
increased accountahility, increased employee training and communicated metrics daily. Manitoring
the metrics daily changes the culture of the call center so they can see their individual performance
and the team performance. Almast 75% of trips are delivered in under 30 minutes. In addition, 83%
or customers are on the bus under 45 minutes and 88% are on board for under an hour. September
was the worst month this year. However, October is out performing this month. On-time performance
last fal! was 81%. National expactation is 90%. Pre-COVID, they had gotten to 89.5%. Since
COVID, they are at 96%. Ridership from Aprit has doubled. These improvements can be contributed
to implemented street routing (using predictive path of travel in the mapping system to create an
accurate schedule), adjusted time-distance calculations, adjusted traffic pattern considerations and
adjusted number of scheduling days. Previously, they scheduled seven days in advance. Now they
are scheduling three days in advance. This has led to a number of improvements such as the

canceflation rate,



RTA Board of Trustees
October 27, 2020
Page 4 of 10

Next items they tend to work on include implementation of service Infractions software, which tracks
no-shows, late cancels, and cancels-at-the-door. When they have these issues, they send
educational letters, followed by warning letters and then suspension. Previously, this was done adhoc
as people came to their attention. They stopped that practice several months ago since it was not
equitable.

Other improvements include reducing canceltation rate (Currently 28%), down from 35% - 40% and
improving customner service interactions. Mr. Serrano asked for more detail on the service infraction
software and equity. Nick said they ask customers to cancel their trips in advance to prevent no
shows and canceliations at the door. If they notice somebody showing a pattern, they would sand
them a warning and possibly suspend them. He does not believe it was applied fairly across all
passengers. The software will track it and apply to all passengers. Rev. Lucas said that Nick has
done an excellent job. Previously, customers waiting to get through would be offsite waiting for 30
minutes and their phones could foss power. The callers are now addressed within a few minutes.
Ms. Pellot asked if reminders are sent out about trips. Nick said they make calls the day before and
imminent arrival if the trip originates from the home address.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:

Michae! Bell - Central Communications Specialist
Peter Quigley - Safety Data Compliance Analyst
Lisa Manill - Legal Secretary

Nicole Campbell - Administrative Assistant
Sophia Ciaravino - Occupational Health Specialist

S e

Promotions:
1. Alexis Marcano - District Business Analyst
2. Carl Harris - Maintenance Leader
3. Charnese Wilson - Contract Administrator
4. Melissa Beverly - Recruiter

Mayor Clough congratulated the promotions. Ms. Birdsong requested to acknowledge a few notable
retirees. Ted Pickett, Fieet Team Leader will retire after 42 years at RTA. The most of his time has
been in the Procurement department. He has been responsible for all of RTA's bus procurements.
Mabry Harris will assume the position of Procurement Team Leader for Fleet and wilf handle the bus
and rail car procurements. Ms. Birdsong added that Ted has been a joy to work with. Ted thanked
RTA for the opportunity. He started as an entry-leve! mechanic and was promoted to a brake team
leader, engine overhaul specialist and fleet engineering. Pete Anderson, ClO will also be retiring. He
has been with RTA for a little over six years. He was in the Navy prior to RTA. He has worked at
COTA and in Fort Worth, TX. Mayor Clough thanked both of them for their commitment and
dedication.

introduction of Resolutions

A, 2020-74 — Expressing sincere appreciation to the Cleveland Foundation and autharizing
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to accept a grant for $75,000, for the
purpose of sponsoring a fare-free Election Day on November 3, 2020, the adoption of
which was moved by Rev, Lucas, seconded by Mr. Bibb and approved by unanimaus
vote,



RTA Board of Trustees
October 27, 2020
Page 5 of 10

Ms. Birdsong added that this is important to the community. Community partnerships like
this with the Cleveland Foundation are great. The Cleveland Foundation asked if RTA
was interested in doing this, Staff had been looking for a partner. Mr. Bibb asked what
the marketing communication strategy would be to get the word out. Mr. Bitto said they
would run radio beginning today up until Election Day. They will have digital boards
posted and at rapid stations. Audio announcements were postad this moming. They
planned for digital ads on Facebook and instagram, but Facebook blocked it because
Election Day is included in the art. They appealed, but it is still blocked. Mr. Bibb asked
how they could assist with spreading the word. Mr. Feliciano added that Cleveland
Foundation is also advertising. The graphic package wilf feature the Cleveland
Foundation as the sponsor. The promotion will start at Noon today. They will reach out to
elected officials and CDCs, which have approached RTA about providing the free fare
day. Ms. Birdsong added the free rides would include bus, rail and Paratransit,

B.  2020-75 - Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority who retired during the third quarter of 2020, the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mr. Bibb and approved by unanimous

vote,
Mr. Fields presented the new hires in a slide show.

C. 2020-76 — Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2018-112 with Transit Sourcing
Services, Inc., for the furnishing of an additional 200 HRV 28 inch steel wheels, as
specified and as required in an amount not to exceed $174,000.00, for a new total
contract amount not to exceed $898,000.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by
Rev. Lucas and approved by unanimous vote.

Dr. Caver said a simitar resolution would be brought to the Board next month. This
contract will allow them to keep continuity of steel wheels. Several years ago, there was
a break in the continuity, which resulted in vehicles being out for service.

D. 2020-77 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2020-058 with Transtech of South Carolina, inc. for
the furnishing of pantograph carbon shoes, as specified and as required, for a period of
three years, in an amount not to exceed $262,800.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mr.
Bibb and approved by unanimous vote

E. 2020-78 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-170 for the purchase of rock salt from the City
of Cleveland for the 2020-2021 winter season in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00
(Generalf Fund, Service Management Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Mayor Byrne, seconded Ms, Moss, Chief McCall asked to recuse herself
because of the City of Cleveland. There were nine (9) ayes and one (1) recuse from
Chief McCall. it passed.

F.  2020-79 — Amending Chapter 656 "Travel Policy and Procedures” of the Codifisd Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Moss and approved by unanimous

vote,

These were discussed in committee.



RTA Board of Trustees
October 27, 2020
Page 6 of 10

G. 2020-80 — Approving purchasing cards for travel on Authority related business, the
adoption of which was moved by Mr, Serrano, seconded by Mr. Bibb and approved by
unanimous vote.

The cards for travel were discussed in committee. They have worked with the Finance
Department and Legal Department to ensure a process is in place, for when Board
members and employees can't use their personal credit cards due to rewards programs
tied to RTA vendors. Board members will be advised as of those vendors RTA does
business with, so they are in conflict. Board members will continue to coordinate travel
with the Board assistant. The card will be distributed when needed ta the traveler. This
will make this more seamless. Ms. Moss asked how many p-cards are being assigned
and if there are good controls in place. Mr. Gautam added that these cards do not have a
revolving credit where the avaitable balance goes back up after payment. They have
budgetary controls in place. For example, if a $2,000 or $5,000 limit is on a card, once
that money has been spent, that card cannot be used unless the budget is amendment.
There are various controls as to what can be used and how the money can be spent and
the size of the purchase. There is continuous review and approvat from the supervisor,
department head and p-card admin. The transactions are subject to Internal Audit review.
Tony Garofoli added that the p-card program is subject to a 100% audit in their continuous
auditing program. Every transaction is processed through an electronic script where they
interrogate the data with 110 questions looking for any exceptions. The exceptions are
brought to management for remedy,

H. 2020-81 - Approving revised list of positions designated to use purchasing cards, the
adoption of which was moved by Mr. Bibb, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by
unanimous vote.

This is a revised list of positions that have purchasing cards, so the card follows the
position and not the name.

I 2020-82 — Adopting the framework for the future Strategic Plan of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which was maved by Mr. Bibb, seconded by
Mr. Joyce and approved by unanimous vote.

Mr. Bibb thanked Maribeth Feke and India for an additionat briefing he received on this
ptan. He looks forward to the additional work presented by the other consuitants during
their retreat next month. Ms. Birdsong thanked him and Chief McCall for leading the
conversation in digging deeper. She is confident that this is a good base, but we need to
keep maving forward over the next year. Rev. Lucas also received additianal information
on the plan. He appreciates the work of the staff.

Interim Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Dr. Caver gave the report. The economy has a huge bearing on RTA's revenue success. The
unemployment rate over the last six months, it has been coming down. The State is at 8.4%. The
county numbers will come in later. We are a little higher than the State traditionally. it is still high
considering that prior to COVID we were in the 4% range. There has been $11.8 billion in
unemployment payments through the State of Ohio and Dept. of Job and Family Services. Although
things are getting better, we are still at levels we have not been before. The economy is adding jobs,
but is still down 6 years' worth of job growth. The economic conditions and the decisions of firms are
still impacted by COVID-19. Companies have altered investment plans given the uncertainty of the
economy. Locally and nationally, small businesses have been disproportionally affected. in addition,



RTA Board of Trustaes
October 27, 2020
Page 7 of 10

black owned businesses have been particularly hit hard. Sales tax is doing well but the near term
does not support that there will be a continued economic increase,

Ridership drives fare revenue and ridership has been at a 54% reduction on average since COVID. In
the height, we were in 70% driving sales up to 60%, but now we have leveled off to the 55% range.
We are averaging 50-55% in passenger fare revenue. Last year in September, we would have
received the CMSD payment, which has traditionally been $4 Mi. They are finalizing the agreement,
but it is expected that that revenue will not be the same since students are not traveling back and forth
1o school. Although the economy is not at its pre-COVID levels, the sales tax has performed strongly.
September and October, year over year, there have been slight increases, they helieve due to the
unemployment payments and the extra payments the people are receiving. Once the payments end,
the aggregate spending will be reduced. Rev. Lucas asked in a previous meeting what makes up the
increase. These are due to auto, liquor and online sales, Online sales are taxed at home addresses
compared to in store sales that may be made outside the County. Compared to 2020, we have
received $5 Mi more from online sales for sales tax. The $112 Ml received from the CARES tax was

drawn down through October.

Ms. Birdsong said we are in a tumultuous time where there is uncertainty with ridership. They will
keep the Board updated on the financial changes that come about as the House and delegation
continues to push for transit funding. As of current, there are no ongoing talks of a 2 round of
CARES Act funding, but she asked that all Board members continue as advocates for transit funding.
They would not be able to continue without consideration of layoffs or cutbacks more than what they
had through the initial stages of COVID without the funding. Rev. Lucas asked if there is any more
funds mentioned for public transit in the conversation going back and forth in Congress. Mr, Schipper
said when the House passed the HEROES Act, there was $15 M for public transit. Then there was
another version with $15 Bl of which some would have come to RTA through a competitive grant
formula. Other talks on the stimulus had it as high at $32 Bl. Most of that difference being with the
farger agencies like New York, Chicago, Washington, etc., where the CARES Act formula did not help
them as significantly as RTA. It was set up in a way RTA could get the money quickly. It is still out
there, but they are not banking on it. The Senate never acted on the HEROS act. For RTA it will not
be life or death for the larger agencies, but we have tremendous funding needs above what is in the

Operating budget.

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer Report

India Birdsong gave the presentation. She announced that fast month RTA received a BUILD grant
for $15 MI to support the rail car replacement project. She shared a video that aired on TV-5 about
how we received the award and the impartance of it to the Ohio region. She thanked Mike Schipper
and his team for their work and the work of the advacacy group in D.C. The System Redesign
meetings began yesterday, The public will be asked for feedback on Facebook Live meetings over
the next few months. June 2021 is the estimated Go Live date. Thanks to the work of the Ad Hoc
Technology Committee, RTA will migrate from Novell to Microsoft Office 365. RTA has been on the
current system for 20 years. The goal is to move over by mid-December. Free Wi-Fi on all RTA
buses, trains and saveral stations is now available. Dr. Caver, Mike Lively, Steve Bitto, Erica Tucker
and Theresa Burrage worked on the project. This will assist students to connect to Wifi. Paratransit
wilt be added in early December. Brookpark, Puritas and W. 150" Street Station is coming soon.
Pictures of the car cards, billboards and social media were displayed. The marketing efforts for the
free fare day includes radio and social media ads.

Mayor Clough asked how many buses take people to their polling locations or is this designed to take
people downtown. Joel Freilich, Raj Gautam and india looked at expected ridership. They looked at
a typical Tuesday over time, a typical weekday ridership and Election Day over the last few years.



RTA Board of Trustees
October 27, 2020
FPage 8 of 10

RTA usually brings in $140,000 per day for revenue. They reduced the expected ridership by 50-55%
due to COVID. Mayor Clough added that polling locations are not all on a main route and wondered
how effective this would be. She has done this type of promotion in other cities. It's not guaranteed
people will use it to get to the polis, but they found this to be maore equitable to make the entire day
free to avoid having to push a button, show a sticker or having a cut off time. Other cities have cut off
times, but people would be stranded. Mayor Clough ask that it be clear that this is a free day and not
a direct ride to the polis and hopefully the routes will get them there. Rev. Lucas lives near Shaker
Sguare. There used to be a polling place in his building, but it is now closed. The closest polling
place is Harvey Rice on E. 116" Street, which is accessible on the Blue or Green Line.

President’s Report

Mayer Clough announced that he would not be seeking reappointment. He will have served as
President for three years. The bytaws indicated that is the maximum the President or VP could serve
in that position. Another mayor selected by the Cuyahoga County Mayors & Managers Association
will be elected December 17. Mayor Clough's term will end February 28, 2021.

New Business

The proposed 2021 Board and Committee Meeting dates was sent out to the Board for review. Mayor
Clough asked if the Board wanted to vote on it now or at the next meeting. Rev. Lucas thanked him
for his leadership thus far. Chief McCall mentioned that some of the meetings fall after a holiday. The
Board executive assistant mentioned that the dates that fall after the holiday include MLK Day and
President's Day. Mayor Clough said that if a date is in conflict the Board could vote to change the
January or February dates. Chief McCall said she was ok and moved for approval. Mr. Serrano
seconded and the schedula was approved.

Public comments on non-agenda items

Comments were received via email and by dial in. A few comments came in from Will Tarter and Lo
after the September 15, 2020 meeting adjourned. The questions and answers were read into the
record, but they are included in the September 15, 2020 minutes.

1. Chris Martin — Cleveland, OH - This month marks two anniversaries for RTA. First, the agency
celebrated 12 years of the Healthline. Go ahead and pat yourselves on the back for the
subsequent billions in economic development that | am sure you give yourselves credit for,
However, the second anniversary marks 3 years since agency decisions killed the whole point
and promise of the Healthline. RTA's decision to rid the Heaithline of proof-of-payment fare
validation has resulted in consistent delays and precipitous ridership declines. Please join
Clevelanders for Public Transit and Black Spring CLE on Thursday at 6pm via Zoom to fearn
more how you can heal the Healthline and begin to deliver justice for riders.

2. Ellen Morales — Berea, OH - | am contacting because | believe we need to defund transit
police and instead invest in other forms of community commuter safety. [ believe
conversations on this topic will help improve our city greatly. We hope you can join us on
October 29th to discuss this further. You can RSVP at clefortransit.org. Thank youl

3. Riley — Cleveland, OH - Commit to abolishing police on the RTA. They are unnecessary and
unheipful. | have been harassed on the RTA so many times, and not once has one of your
officers intervened. They do not do their jobs of protecting ridere and serve only to intimidate
anyone who can't pay the fare.




RTA Board of Trustees
October 27, 2020
Page 9 of 10

4. Josiah ~ Twinsburg, OH - | am writing because | have been avid RTA rider for most of my life.
Growing up in Shaker the train was my gateway to the world, When my car died recently {
even caught the bus from county fine downtown to work, Service cuts have hurt many people
and when so much money is being spent on Transit police, it seems a simple choice, |
encourage board members to attend Thursday's Zoom event being put on by Clevelanders for
Public Transit and Black Spring Cleveland and hear from riders themselves. Please show that
the board is invested in creating best outcomes by registering at clefortransit.org.

9. Justin Petro — Cleveland, OH - During this critical period where RTA needs to properly invest
its resources to continue to serve the community, now is the time to divest from the Transit
Authority and instead invest more resources into safe reliable public transportation for the
community. Clevelanders for Public Transit is holding a virtual meeting on October 29th that
we invite and encourage RTA board members to attend. Please join us on October 29th to
discuss this further. You can RSVP at clefortransit.org

6. Lauren Joy Fraley - Cleveland, OH - t commuted on the Red Line regularly in 2018-19 and as
a white woman heading from Kamm's Corners to Cedar-Fairmount, 1 only witnessed police
officers checking (usually Biack riders) for fare cards "with reasonable suspicion”, while my
own interactions with officers were usually having the door held for me. This is the lens
through which 1 share this comment. | am aware that RTA Fares wera doubled (from $1.25 to
$2.50) and RTA police budget was also doubled in 2012. RTA has claimed that crime is down
65% since then (ostensibly due to the increase in officer presence). But research done by
Clevelanders for Public Transit and Black Spring Cleveland shows that the only crime that has
actually gone down is fare evasion - which accounts for 99.5% of that reduction in crime. Any
change in quality of life crimes are negligible, leading one to conclude that an increase officer
presence has done nothing for public safety, and has indeed caused physical, emotional, and
financial harm for Black and Brown communities. October 29th at 6pm is a celebration of the
anniversary of the Groves Decision-- which said that armed officers cannot randomly do
searches on the RTA. At that time in 2017, Judge Groves also made a recommendation to
have unarmed ambassadors represent the RTA rather than armed cops-- yet this change
hasn't been made. This is an opportunity to demand that Emanuella Groves' recommendation
be honored and WE HOPE YOU JOIN USHt YOU CAN RSVP AT CLEFORTRANSIT.ORG

7. Kate Nickley - Lakewood, OH - | firmly believe defunding the transit police and investing in
other forms of community safety such as a civilian ambassador program would be a significant
step towards equity and social justice in Greater Cleveland. Reducing fares rather than paying
to police fare evasion would also be in the public's interest. BIPOC riders and poor riders are
disproportionately and negatively affected by your current policing system, [ invite you to take
action by listening to and collaborating with community groups who aim to amplify the rider's
voice. Please join Black Spring Cleveland on Qctober 29th to discuss this further. You can
RSVP at clefortransit.org.

8. Ernest W, Durbin Il - Cleveland Heights, OH - I am writing to support defunding the GCRTA
Transit Police Department. Since the Groves decision in 2017, which struck down
unconstitutional fare enforcement policies, the Transit Police have become redundant as a
police force, Each community that the GCRTA services in Cuyahoga County has an existing
police force that can respond to incidents that occur in and around the GCRTA. This overlap is
an abject waste of the $14 million budget allocated by the GCRTA to operate a police force
that only exists to harass and intimidate our most vuinerable community members. These
funds could be used to immediately reduce fares and increase service for all residents,
increasing ridership and working to a more sustainable GCRTA. | am asking that the GCRTA




RTA Board of Trustees
Qctober 27, 2020
Page 10 of 10

10.

1.

12.

Board members please join Clevelanders for Public Transit and Black Spring Clevetand on
QOctober 29th to discuss this further. You can each RSVF at clefortransit.org.

Kameron Damaska — Cleveland, OH - Hello, I'm a transit rider on the west side of Cleveland,
The common route | ride is from the EcoVillage Red Line stop to Tower City, Every time |
leave the platform at Tower City, | see at least 6 transit police just standing around, deing
nothing. Police used to enforce fares on transit. They would harass riders, sometimes put
them in jail, all over a couple dollar bus pass. Luckily for us, transit police cannot do that
anymore. Now, they do next-to-nothing. We need to free up the wasted funds we spend on
police, and really invest in our riders. Board members, we will be having a conversation
Qctober 29th on Zoom to discuss this more. Will you join us? You can RSVP at
clefortransit, org.

Rev. Pamela Pinkpey-Butts — She is working with Mr. Bitto in reference to shelters that have
been adopted, but not being taking care of. The cameras on the buses coming out of Hayden
don’t work. People on dialysis are being left outside after they are dropped off because the
centers won't let them in. She asked that this be brought to Mayor Jackson’'s attention. She
doesn't like how the funding has gone. There are no elevators at the stations on the east side,

Pluria Gardner - She called a few meetings ago about an issue with a Transit Police officer.
She requested a meeting with the General Manager. This problem has caused her 2-3 trips.
A TP falsified a police report. She has pending charges. She is a RTA customer and doesn't
appreciate the treatment she is receiving. Ms. Birdsong added that her office reached out to
her and will be in contact by the end of the week after they gather information from Transit
Palice.

Dana Beveridge - Clevelanders for Public Transit (CPT) thanked the Board for approving the
Strategic Plan. She hopes this will mean more opportunities to collaborate with RTA for a
more equitable, better transit in the future. She applauds the Board and the Cleveland
Foundation for the free fares on Election Day. They hope that the Board and leadership will
join them this Thursday for a townhall discussion on safer aiternatives to policing on transit.
They are eager to discuss the possibilities RTA joining other progressive agencies across the
U.S. who use unarmed civilian transit ambassadors to ensure customers are able to have safe
and comfortable experience while riding RTA. RSVP at clefortransit.org.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November 17, 2020 in the Board Room of
the Authority, Root-McBride Building, and 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This
meeting wili be live streamed on RTA's Facebook page for staff and members of the public at

www. facebook.com/riderta Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board

Room.

This meeting was adjourned at 11:03 a.m.

Attest:

;MZ; ?e{ ﬂ President

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100-326 Greater Claveland Regional Transit Authority

07.03.57
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF PERSONAL PROTECTIVE 2020-83
EQUIPMENT (PPE), AS SPECIFIED AND AS Pate:
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF QONE YEAR November 12, 2020
Initiator:
VENDOR; NORFLEET DISTRIBUTORS, LLC Fleet Management
Department
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $110,160,00
ACTION REQUEST;
B Approval [ Review/Comment (] Information Only (1 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will alow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
purchase of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) far the Autharity's employees, as specified
and as required, for a period of one year.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Due to the CQVID-18 pandemic, the Authority has a need for
PPE. This contract will provide the Authority's Supply Chain Management Departmeant with up to
600,000 nitrile gioves and up to 48,000 disposable masks that will be available for use by
Authority employees when an Authority property.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The invitation for Bid ({FB} was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Two hundred thirty-three
interested parties downloaded the solicitation. Four responsive bids were opened on September
16, 2020 as foliows:

Dust/Surgical
Bidder Nitrile Gloves Mask Total
Norfleet Distributors $102,000| $8,160 $110,160
Neopart ) $109,500 $3,840 $113,340
Trans Logic $114,000 $39,840 $153,840
TSS $150,000 $28,320 I $178,320

The Total Bid from Norfleet Distributors, LLC was determined to be a responsive bid from a
responsible bidder. A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department
has determined the total price submitted by Norfleet Distributors, LLC to be fair and
reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGRQUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 12% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Norfleet Distributors, LLC has
committed to $7,931.52 or 7% DBE participation on the contract through the utilization of
ZayMat (African American-owned) to supply materials in the amount of $13,219.20 (equals
$7,931.52 under Federal Regulations). Norfieet Distributors, LLC also submitted documentation
that demaonstrates sufficient good faith effort has been made to achieve the 12% DBE
participation goal,

5.0 POLICY IMPACT. Does not apply.



Staff Summary & Comments 2020-83
Personal Protective Equipment ‘
Page 2

8.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $110,160.00 for the period of
one year. The bid price is approximately 39% below the budget estimate.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer could affect the Authority's ability to
provide its employees with PPE, which would impact the Authority’s ability to provide safe and
reliabie service to the public.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Norfleet Distributors, LLC be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Qfficer

to enter into a contract.
9.0 ATTACHMENT: None.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availabitity of funds, tegal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

7General Manager, Chief Exdautive Officer




RESOLUTION NO, 2020-83

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-091 WITH NORFLEET DISTRIBUTORS,
LLC FOR THE FURNISHING QF PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT
(PPE), AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR
NOT TO EXCEED $110,160.00 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires its employees to wear Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE) while working; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Norfleet Distributors, LLC located at 32493 Jefferson Drive,
Solon, Ohio 44139, for the furnishing of personal protective equipment, as specified and as
required, in an amount not to exceed $110,160.00 for the period of one year, was received on
September 16, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Norfleet
Distributors, LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Norfleet Distributors, LLC for the furnishing of personal
protective equipment, as specified and as required, for a period of one year, be and the same is
hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Norfleet Distributors, LL.C for the furnishing of personal
protective equipment, as specified and as required, for the period of one year.

Section 3. That this procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $110,160.00 for the period of one
year.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and ali applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Norfleet Distributors, LLC, will attempt to exceed the 12% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shalf bacome effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 17, 2020

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



L 2 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
o STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.;

AMOUNT:  AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $335,944.00

CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF UP TO 400 28-INCH STEEL WHEELS, |2020-84

AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF | Date:

ONE YEAR MNovember 12, 2020
Initiator
VENDOR; MWL BRASIL RODAS & EIXOS LTDA. Fleet Management
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
& Approval (1 Review/Comment {1 Information Only (7 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
furnishing of up to 400 28-inch steel wheels for the Tokyu Heavy Rail Vehicles (HRV), as
specified and as required, for a period of one year.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has an ongoing need to replace the 28 inch HRV
steel wheels due to normal wear that occurs during train service. As part of the HRV's regular
maintenance, HRV wheels are measured and machined to return the wheel's profile back into
tolerance. When a wheel's diameter falls below 26 inches, it can no longer be machined and
must be replaced.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid (“tFB") was posted on the
Procurement section of the Authority's web site and advertised in the local newspapers,
Fourteen (14) interested parties downloaded the solicitation package. Four (4) responsive bids
were received on August 8, 2020 as foliows.

HRY Steel Wheels
__Company Name Quantity Fart Number Unit Cost Extended Cost

MWL Brasil 400 MW-MWL. BDASIL $830.86 $335,944 .00
Rodas & Eixos
LTDA.
Lucchini RS 400 AAR Manuf. Code $979.00 $391,600.00
S.p.A, "W -
Alstom 400 DTR0O00366973 $OBE 18 $305 272.00
Transportation,
Inc. N
ORX 400 ORX WHE( -31-5372 $1,054.00 $421,600.00

The bid of MWL Brasil Rodas & Eixos LTDA. has been determined by the Procurement
Department to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The bid price is approximately 6% below the
budget estimate.




Staff Summary & Comments 2020-84

HRV Steel Wheel
Page 2

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of

certified DBE firms,
5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $335,944 .00 for a period of one

year,

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would impact the Authority's ability to
maintain its heavy rail vehicles.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of MWL Brasil Rodas & Eixos LTDA. be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
to enter into a contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENT. None.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legat form and conformance
with the Procurement requirerments.

- T
4 .-".HJ "HF}’ M

“Géneral Manager, Chief ExecutiveQffider




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-84

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-100 WITH MWL BRASIL RODAS &
EIXOS LTDA. FOR THE FURNISHING OF UP TO 400 28-INCH STEEL
WHEELS FOR TOKYU HEAVY RAIL VEHICLES, AS SPECIFIED AND AS
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TQ
EXCEED $335,944.00 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority has recurring
requirements for replacement of 28 inch steel wheels on Heavy Rail Vehicles (HRV): and

WHEREAS, the bid of MWL Brasil Rodas & Eixos LTDA., located at Rodovia Vito Ardito,
KM 1, Cacapava, Sao Paulo-Brazil, 12282-535, for the furnishing of up to 400 28-inch stesl
wheels, as specified and as required, at a unit price of $839.86, for a total contract amount not
to exceed $335,944 .00 for a period of one year, was received on August 6, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of MWL Brasil
Rodas & Eixos LTDA., to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Seclion 1. That the bid of MWL Brasil Rodas & Eixos LTDA. for furnishing of up to 400
HRV 28-inch steel wheels, as specified and as required, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with MWL Brasil Rodas & Eixos LTDA. for the furnishing of up
to 400 HRV 28-inch steel wheels, as specified and as required, for a period of one year.

Section 3. This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Departrment budget, for a total contract amount not to exceed $335,944.00 for a
period of one yaar.

section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that MWL Brasil Rodas & Eixos LTDA. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurament.

section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 17, 2020

President

Attest.

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



(gﬁgg_;go"m Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resalution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 60F — WEST 307" STREET SUBSTATION 2020-85
REHABILITATION Date:
VENDOR: HATZEL & BUEHLER, INC. Novemnber 12, 2020
AMOUNT:  $1,557,327.00 Initiator;
Engineering & Project
Development

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval (1 Review/Comment £ Information Only 0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action wili allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
construction services for Project 80F — West 30" Street Substation Rehabilitation.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This project consists of providing a new traction power system
including, but not limited to, the following: AC&DC switchgear, DC tie switch, rectifier, and a
rectifier transformer. In addition, the project includes all new interconnections, cables, wires,
supports, and connection hardware to ensure a fully operational rehabilitated substation,

PROCUREMENT BACKGRQUND: The invitation for Bid (“tFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-five interested parties,
including potential subconiractors, downioaded the solicitation package. Four responsive bids
were recejved on QOctober 1, 2020 as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. $1,557 32700
Zenith Systems $1,990,228.00

The Fowler Company %1,998,500.00
Einheit Electric $2,115,499.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base Bid
price. The Total Base Bid price of $1,557.327 .00 received from Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. is
approximately 26.9% less than the Engineer's Estimate of $2,131,281.67. Hatzel & Buehler, Inc.
was determined to be a respaonsible bidder.

A cost analysis has been performed and the bid of Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. has been determined
by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 14% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Hatzel and Buehler,
Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of
Safeguard Associates (African-American-owned) in the amount of $330,000.00,
Denise's Flagging {African-American Female-owned) in the amount of $8,000.00, and
Summit Painting (Female-owned) in the amount of $12,700.00 for a total of $350,700.00
or 22.5%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited
to Capital Grants OH-2019-037-337 and OH-2018-001, in an amount not to exceed
$1,657,327.00 ($1,245,861.60 in federal funds which represent 80% of the total cost).



2020-
Staff Summary & Comments 020-85

West 30th Street Substation Rehabilitation
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer may create a potential for service
interruption as the result of an aged traction power substation.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
November 10, 2020 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the bid of Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. be accepted and the resolution
passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract,

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availabiiity
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement

requirements.

Lz P e

?ﬁeral Manager, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-85

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-125 WITH HATZEL & BUEHLER, INC.
FOR PROJECT 60F — WEST 30™ STREET SUBSTATION REHABILITATION,
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,557,327.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT
FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary o acquire construction services, as
provided under Project 60F — W. 30" Street Substation Rehabilitation; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Hatzel & Buehler, Inc., located at 1200 Resource Drive, Suite 10,
Cleveland, OH 44131, was received on October 1, 2020 in an amount not to exceed
$1,557,327.00 to perform said services: and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Hatze! &
Buehler, Inc. to be a responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. for Project 60F — West 30t Street
Substation Rebabilitation, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Hatzel & Buehier, Inc. for Project 60F
West 30" Street Substation Rehabilitation.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to Capital
Grants OH-2019-037-337 and OH-2018-001, in an amount not to exceed $1,557,327.00
($1,245,861.60 in federal funds which represent B0% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any,
the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements; and all applicable laws refating to the contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 14% minimum DBE goal assigned
to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 17, 2020

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Autharity

To: Mayor Dennis M. Clough, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: india L. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer e
Date: November 12, 2020
Subject: Contract No. 2020-129 Magnetic Fare Media — Single Bid

At the November 17, 2020 meeting of the Board of Trustees, GCRTA will seek approval to
award Electronic Data Magnetics {(EDM) Contract No. 2020-129 for magnetic fare media in an
amount not to exceed $921,645.

Solicitation No. 2020-129 is for a multiyear requirements contract for magnetic fare cards
compatible with GCRTA’s GFl Genfare fareboxes and ACS (Conduent) vending machines used for
fare collection. The bid consists of two sections, of which can be bid in part or in whole. Section 1
is for non-encoded paper thermal cards ({trim issued) to be dispensed from fareboxes. Section 2 is
for paper thermal, plastic thermal and plastic non-thermal cards that are to be magnetically
encoded by the vendor. The magnetic coding must be compatible with GFl and ACS
specifications and printing per GCRTA specifications.

The key suppliers in the market are Electronic Data Magnetics (EDM), Magnadata, Magnetic
Ticket and Label (MT&L) and Southland Printing. The last few solicitations have had two
bidders, with Magnadata being awarded Section 1, and EDM being awarded Section 2. MT&L
had submitted a bid in 2009, however failed durability tests and has never resolved the issues
or bid again.

Notices of this solicitation were sent to the four key suppliers above, all of which downloaded
the solicitation package. Reminders were sent to all potential bidders ahead of the deadiine.
Correspondence was received prior to the deadline from Magnadata, EDM, and Southland,
however, only EDM submitted a bid. EDM's bid came in 3.5% above the independent cost
estimate. Per Procurement Policies and Proceduraes, when a single responsive bid is received,
negotiations of prices may be undertaken. Negotiations were held with EDM, per
Procurement's Policies & Procedures, bringing EDM's total bid within approximately 1% of the
estimate,

Procurement reached out to the three key suppliers who did not submit bids to gain insight why
they did not participate. Magnadata stated they were not interested in going through the
paperwork and contracting process, however, they may be willing to participate in future small
purchases, if needed, Southland Printing stated they had personal matters and timing didn't
work out for this bid. Southland Printing has not bid on recent solicitations. MT&L has not
responded to Procurements requests.



Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

Revenue has stack under Section 1 (Trim Cards) available to get through the beginning of 2021,
however, they do not have stock under Section 2, in particular for monthly passes, starting in
March 2021. Due to the lead time, Revenue needs to place an order as soon as possible to get
passes in time to distribute.

EDM has been a proven supplier for GCRTA for approximately fourteen years, and has
been awarded Section 2 under the iast few solicitations. EDM's bid for Section 1 came in at
$14/1000 cards versus $17/1000 cards under Magnadata's maost recent contract pricing.
Further, EDM's bid for Section 2 is in line with histarical pricing, as well as the independent
cost estimate. EDM serves New York MTA, CTA (Chicago), Chariotte Area Transit, Maimi
Dade Transit Authority, Nashville MTA, DART, and Dayton RTA, among many others.
Given the above, the bid of EDM is deemed fair and reasonable from a responsive and
responsible bidder,

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
mesting.

IB/MD



e 10 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
07-03-97 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: MAGNETIC FARE MEDIA 2020-86
Date:
VENDOR: ELECTRONIC DATA MAGNETICS, INC. November 12, 2020

AMOUNT. NTE $552,987.00 FOR THE BASE THREE YEAR TERM, | initiator:
WITH TWO ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR OPTIONS NOT TO | Revenue Department
EXCEED $184,329.00 PER YEAR, FOR A TOTAL
CONTRACT NOT TO EXCEED $921,645.00

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval  [1 Review/Comment [ Information Only 1 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract with
Electronic Data Magnetics, Inc. for the purchase of fare media cards, as required, for a

period of three years, with two additional one-year options.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires fare media cards using both paper
and polyester cards that are encoded on the magnetic strip for use with the GFt Electronic
fareboxes. Some cards require thermal printing while others require only press printing
without thermal coating. This action includes magnetic plastic non-thermal cards, magnetic
paper thermal cards, and magnetic plastic thermal cards.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid (IFB) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Notifications were sent out to
four prospective bidders and eleven interested parties accessed and/or downtoaded the
solicitation and one responsive bid was received. Electronic Data Magnetics, Inc. was
determined to be a responsible bidder. A price analysis was performed, and after
negotiations with the single bidder, the Procurement Department has determined the total
price not to exceed $552,987.00 for the base three-year term, with two additional one-year
options not to exceed $184,329.00 per year, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$921,645.00 to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified

DBE firms.
5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMFACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund,
Revenue Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $552,987.00 for the base three-
year contract, and in an amount not to exceed $184,3292.00 for each option year, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $921,645.00. This negotiated amount is within 1.3% of the
independent cost estimate of $910,000.00.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES. Rejectthis offer. Rejection of this offer would delay the delivery and
prevent the sale of various magnetic strip passes and farecards distributed at retail
stores, by customer service, and ontine that are used with the GF| Electronic fareboxes,

faregates, and other related fare coilection equipment.



Staff Summary & Comments
Magnetic Fare Media
Page 2

2020-86

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that the bid of Electronic Data Magnetics, Inc.
be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chisf Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

90 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

,w{;@/«; s

Ge(?’é/ral Manager, Chief ExecutfveOfficer




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-86

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-129 WITH ELECTRONIC DATA
MAGNETICS, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE OF MAGNETIC FARE MEDIA, AS
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS, WITH TWOQ ADDITIONAL ONE-
YEAR OPTIONS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $552,987.00 FOR THE
BASE TERM AND IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $184,329.00 FOR EACH
OPTION YEAR, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$921,645.00 (GENERAL FUND, REVENUE DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority requires a vendor to
supply magnetic polyester non-thermal cards, paper thermal cards, and polyester thermal fare
cards to dispense from the GFI electronic fareboxes; and

WHEREAS, this procurement was divided into two sections and vendors were able to
bid on one or both of the sections: and

WHEREAS, a single bid was received from Electronic Data Magnetics, Inc. for this
solicitation for both sections; and

WHEREAS, negotiations were then held with Electronic Data Magnetics, In¢.; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Electronic Data Magnetics, inc. located at 210 Qld Thomasville
Rd, High Point, NC 27260, for the furnishing of magnetic fare media, was received on
November 3, 2020, at unit prices resulting in an amount, after negotiations, not to exceed
$552,987.00 for the base years and in an amount not to exceed $184,329.00 for each option
year for a fotal contract amount not to exceed $921,645.00; and

WHEREAGS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Electronic
Data Magnetics, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the RBoard of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Electronic Data Magnetics, Inc. for the furnishing of magnetic
fare media, as specified and as required, be and the same is hereby accepted as the lowest
responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Electronic Data Magnetics, Inc. for the furnishing of
magnetic fare media, as specified and as required, for a period of three years with the authority
to exercise two, additional one-year options.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Revenue
Departrnent budget, in an amount not to exceed $552,987.00 for the three base years and an
amount not to exceed $184,329.00 for each option year for a total contract amount not to
exceed $921,645.00.



Resolution No. 2020-86
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obfigation of the Authority
contingent upen future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority.

Section 5, That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Electronic Data Magnetics, Inc. will attempt {o exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal

assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: Novernber 17, 2020
President

Aftest;

interim Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

Form 100326
070397 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: NEXT GENERATION TELEPHONE SERVICE FOR ONE | 2020-87
YEAR Date:
VENDOR: CBTS, LLC DBA CBTS TECHNOLOGY November 12, 2,020
SOLUTIONS, LLC Initiator: Information
_ Technology
AMOUNT:  NTE $204,602.16 Department

ACTION REQUEST!

Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only I Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This resolution will authorize the Authority to enter into a contract for
the purchase of Next Generation Telephone Service for one year through the State of
Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: To meet the communication needs for the GCRTA, the
IT Department historically operated and maintained a substantial network of Private
Branch Exchange Telephone switches, otherwise known as PBX's, for critical internal and
external voice communication. The cost to procure and maintain these systems was high
and tha opportunity for Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity was low. Therefore, in
2016 the IT Department tested and evaluated a hosted telephony solution called Next
Generation Telephone System, or NGTS, offered by Cincinnati Bell Technology Solutions,
under the State of Ohio’'s Cooperative Purchasing Program. During a pilot program the
system was found to be very capable and full featured, and the IT Steering Committee
directed the IT Department to move forward. On November 15, 2016, the Board of
Trustees, by Resolution No. 2016-103, authorized Contract No. 2016-131 for the
purchase of hardware for the phone system implementation and data network switches for
the LAN implementation program. The implementation of the new telephone system was
completed. The Authority must purchase this hosted service on an annual basis. These
services are avatiable through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services,

Cooperative Purchasing Program.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Section 306.43(H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code
provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the opportunity to participate in
contracts negotiated and executed by the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative
Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program for the purchase of supplies, services,
eguipment and certain materials, The Board of Trustees has authorized the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to utilize such contracts by Resolution No, 1980-69. The
State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program includes a contract with CBTS, LLC dba
CBTS Technology Solutions, LLC for NGTS Telephone Service under State Term
Schedule No. MCSA00003.

A cost analysis was performed by the Procurement Department and it has been
determined that the price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.




Staff Summary & Comments 2020-87
Next Generation Telephone Service
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

8.0

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development
does not conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish DBE goals on procurements
included in the State Cooperative Purchasing Program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shali be payable from the General Fund,
infarmation Technology Department budget, at a total price not to exceed $204,602.16 for
a period of one year. This total is lass than 1% below the $205,000.00 estimate for this
purchase,

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority
without the ability to provide crucial communication services for GCRTA employees and
customers,

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer of CBTS, LLC, be accepted and
the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter
into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Frocurement requirements.

o “ﬂ "t \Mﬂ‘i‘%‘ﬁ? ]
Gene/rgl Marager, Chief Executive Qffickr




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-87

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-148 WITH CBTS, LLC, DBA CBTS
TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS, LLC TO PRQVIDE NEXT GENERATION
TELEPHONE SERVICE FOR ONE YEAR THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIOQ,
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, COOPERATIVE
PURCHASING PROGRAM, FOR A PRICE NQOT TO EXCEED $204,602.16
(GENERAL FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority has the need to provide telephone service throughout the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, such service is available through the State of Ohio, Department of
Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program; and

WHEREAS, CBTS, LLC dba CBTS Technology Solutions, LLC (“CBTS, LLC") with an
office located at 221 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, OH 45202, has offered to provide such
service for a total contract amount not to exceed $204,602.16 for a period of one year; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43 (H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code provides political
subdivisions within the State of Ohio, the opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the
State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the Cooperative Purchasing
Program in Reselution No.1990-69; and

WHEREAGS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems it in the best interest
of the Authority to utilize the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program for obtaining said
service and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1, That the offer from CBTS, LLC, to provide Next Generation Telephone
sService for one year, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with CBTS, LLC to provide said services.

section 3. That the said contract is entered into under the authority granted by Ohio
Revised Code Section 306.43(H)4) and under the terms of the State of Ohio Cooperative
Purchasing Program.

Section 4. This contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, at a total price not to exceed $204,602.16 for a period of one
year.

Section 5. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.



Resolution No. 2020-87
Page 2

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adaption.

Adopted: November 17, 2020

Fresident

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland interoffice Memo
Regienal Transit Authority

To: Mayor Dennis M. Ciough, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdsong -
General Manager, Chief Executive Oﬁicer@
Date: November 12, 2020
Subject: Increase to Contract No, 2018-090 for Rental & Maintenance of Shop Uniforms

with Cintas Corporation No. 2

At the November 17, 2020 meeting of the Board of Trustees, GCRTA management will seek
approval to award an increase to Contract No. 2018-090 for rental and maintenance of shop
uniforms.

On December 18, 2018, Contract No, 2018-090 was awarded under Resolution No. 2018-106 to
Cintas Corporation No. 2 for rental and maintenance of shop uniforms in an amount not to exceed
$183,995.76 per year, for the base three-years, as well as two, one-year options, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $919,978.80.

During the first year of the contract with Cintas Corporation No, 2, Contract Management
discovered that funds were being expended faster than anticipated. After further review, it was
determined that we underestimated the expense and amount of contract management associated
with switching to a new vendor and receiving brand new uniforms.

Prior to 2018 and since 2003, a previous contractor provided these services to Autharity
employees, For each new negotiated contract, the contractor offered the Authority the option to
remain in the existing uniforms, only getting new ones as needed, or to replace all existing
uniforms with brand new ones. The Authority consistently selected the least expensive option,
which kept employees in the existing uniforms.

The shop uniform contract is unique and unlike other contracts, in that it affects employees at
the Main Office Building, as well as, each of the districts, complicating the contract management
process. The change in vendors after nearly 15 years, brought certain deficiencies associated
with the management of this contract into view. The support of internal Audit was engaged to
evaluate the budget, contract terms and conditions and internal processes. Deficiencies were
identified and Contract Management is addressing these findings with new management
controls.

Two Change Orders were approved under the General Manager's authority, increasing funding
to cover the first year of the contract. Change Order #1, approved on August 18, 2020, added
$29,171.79 and Change Order #2, approved on October 30, 2020, added $38,280.47. The
current total contract amount is NTE $949,150.59.



Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority

This Resolution requests that the Board of Trustees authorize an annual increase to the contract
in an amount not to exceed $150,418.60 for each of the remaining two base years and each of
the two option years, for a new total contract amount not to exceed $1,589,105.46.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday
is meeting.

IB/MD



Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

Form 100-3246
g STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.;
CONTRACT: INCREASE TQO CONTRACT NO. 2018-090 FOR SHOP 2020-88
UNIFORMS Date-
VENDOR:;  CINTAS CORPORATION NO, 2 November 12, 2020
AMOUNT:  ADDITIONAL AMOUNT NTE $300,837.20 FOR THE Initiator:
REMAINING BASE CONTRACT AND AMQUNTS NTE Fleet Management

$150,418.60 FOR EACH OF TWO OFTION YEARS, FOR | Department
A NEW TOTAL CONTRACT AMQUNT NTE $1,589,105.46

ACTION REQUESTION
B Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

FURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will aliow the Authority to enter into a change order to Contract
No. 2018-090 with Cintas Corporation No. 2, to revise the total number of uniforms, adjust the
allocation of uniform types amongst employees and add funds for damage and loss protection for
uniforms for various bargaining and non-bargaining maintenance employees.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority supplies uniform rental, maintenance and
lockers, as required, for various bargaining and non-bargaining maintenance employees based
on job description. Each employee receives 11 sets of uniforms {pants and shirts), of which 5
sets are laundered and maintained weekly. Additionally, some employees may also have
reflective and/or flame retardant jackets or coveralls. With respect to bargaining unit employees,
these uniforms are provided pursuant to the Authority’s collective bargaining agreement with the
Amalgamated Transit Union.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: On May 21, 2018, by Resolution No. 2018-106, the Authority
entered into a contract with Cintas Corporation No. 2, to provide uniforms, maintenance and
tockers to various bargaining and non-bargaining maintenance employees. The contract award
was in an annual amount not to excead $183,995.76 for the hase three years, as well as for two,
one-year options, for a total contract amount not to exceed $919,978.80.

During the first year of the contract it was discovered that the original number of employees using
shop uniforms was inaccurate and funds were being expended faster than anticipated.
Operations staff, with assistance from members of the Human Resources and Safety
Departments, did a thorough analysis of the positions requiring shop uniforms and the associated
job descriptions to determine the type of uniform best suited for each position. Upon compietion
of the analysis, Operations staff provided updated quantities to Procurement to adjust the
requirements contract based on the new information. Change Qrder 1 was approved on August
18, 2020 for $29,171.79, Change Order 2 was approved on Qctober 30, 2020 for $38,280.47.
Both of these change orders were needed to fund the first year of the contract. This resolution
seeks to add the necessary funding for the remaining base two years of the contract, as well as
two option years. This change order was discussed and approved by the Change Order
Committee.

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has determined that the
increase is fair and reasonable to the Autharity.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requiremnents have
been met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement due to the
lack of certified DBE firms,



Staff Summary & Comments

Shop Unifarms, Increase to Contract 2020-88

Page 2

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This change order will be payable through the General Fund,

Fleet Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $300,837.20 for the
remaining base contract and in an amount not to exceed $150,418.60 for each of the
two option years, for a new total contract amount not to exceed $1,589,105.46.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will prevent the Authority from
providing rental and maintenance of shop uniforms to various bargaining and non-bargaining
maintenance employees thus affecting the GCRTA's ability to maintain compliance with the union
contract.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that the offer of Cintas Corporation No. 2 be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to modify the contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENTS: Aftachment A~ Change Order Log.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

G'qfneral Manager, Chief Execqf ve) Officer




Attachment A

Change Order Log

Rental & Maintenance of Shop Uniforms

Contract #2018-090

Caontractor;  Cintas Corporation No. 2

Original Contract Amount $9819,978.80

Total Change Order Amount To Date; $67 ,452.28

Total G.M. C.O. Authority; $100,000.00
Remaining G.M. C.O. Authority: $32,547.74

AFAROVAL AUTHORITY

MEW CONTRACT
AAFOIMT

STER WO, NOTE  APPFROVAL CHANGE
: DATE GHRER
1 1 08/18/2020 $29,171.79
2 2 10/30/2020 $38,280.47
3 3 Pending $601,674.40

By L LIk k1011 il e e e e g 0 AR LR PO A4 1

General Manager
General Manager

Board of Trustees

$949,150.59
$987,431.086

$1,589,105.48

NOTES/CHANGE ORDER DESCRIPTION:

1. Add funds to year one of contract for changes to quantities of employees in each type of uniform and
associated costs. This is a partial increase — additional increase forthcoming after further

discussions and decisions by management.

2. After a complete review and analysis of the total number of positions requiring shop uniforms and
the uniform types, it has been determined that an additional $38,280.47 is necessary to complete
year one of the contract. This takes into consideration a credit of $16,502.12 for insurance charges

billed to the Authority without proper authorization.

3. Additional funding to increase remaining twa years of the base contract and each of two option

years.



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-88

AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO, 2018-090 WITH CINTAS
CORPORATION NO. 2 TO REVISE THE SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR RENTAL
AND MAINTENANCE OF SHOP UNIFORMS IN AN AMOUNT NTE $300,837.20
FOR THE REMAINING BASE CONTRACT AND IN AN AMOUNT NTE
$150,418.60 FOR EACH OF TWOQO OPTION YEARS, FOR A NEW TOTAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE $1,589,105 46 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET
MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority provides uniform rental and maintenance to various bargaining
and non-bargaining maintenance employees based on job description: and

WHEREAS, an offer was received from Cintas Corporation No. 2 with an office locatad
at 8800 Cintas Boulevard, Mason, OH 45040, to provide rental and maintenance of shop
uniforms, as required, on September 18, 2018 for a three year period with two one-year options;
and

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2018, Resolution No. 2018-106 authorized Contract No. 2018-
090 with Cintas Corporation No. 2 to provide rental and maintenance of shap uniforms, as
required, in an amount not to exceed $551,987.28 for the base three years, and in an amount
rot to exceed $183,995.76 for each of the two option years, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $919,978.80; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer approved Change Order No.
1 in the amount of $29,171.79 on August 18, 2020 and Change Order No. 2 in the amount of
$38,280.47 on October 30, 2020, both authorizing payments for modifications that were made to
meet employees’ uniform needs during the first year of the contract: and

WHEREAS, based on an analysis of those modifications, the Authority has recognized
the need to revise the scope of services for rental and maintenance of shop uniforms which,
after negotiations with the contractor, will result in an increase to the contract in an amount not
to exceed $300,837.20 for the remaining base two year contract, and in an amount not fo
exceed $150,418.60 for each of the two option years, for a new total contract amaunt not to
exceed $1,589,105.46; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems it is in the best
interest of the Authority to revise the scope of services for rental and maintenance of shop
uniforms.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE |T RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Cintas Corporation No. 2 to revise the scope of services for
rentat and maintenance of shop uniforms is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to amend Contract 2018-090 with Cintas Corporation No. 2, to revise
the scope of services for rental and maintenance of shop uniforms.

Section 3. This change order will be payable through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $300,837.20 for the remaining
base contract and in an amount not to exceed $150,418.60 for each of the two option years, for
a new total contract amount not to exceed $1,589,105.46.



Resolution Na. 2020-88
Page 2

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order authority
is reinstated in its entirety.

Section 5. That all other terms and conditions of the originaf contract remain
unchanged.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upan its adoption.

Adopted: November 17, 2020

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



g;ng; -19070-316 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESGRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2020- 59

REPEALING CHAPTERS 1084, 1085 AND 1086 AND ENACTING A Date:
NEW CHAPTER 1086 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND November 12, 2020
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL Initiator:
TRANSIT AUTHORITY y
Operations

ACTION REQUEST;
& Approval {} Review/Comment U Information Only £ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will repeal Chapters 1084 "Service to Elderly and
Handicapped,” 1085 "ADA Complementary Paratransit Plan” and 1086 "Accessibie Transit
Services Policy” and enact a new Chapter 1086 “Paratransit and Accessible Service Policy” of the
Codified Rules and Regulations ("Code") of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION:  Chapter 1084 was enacted in 1884, Chapter 1085 was
enacted in 1995. Chapter 1088 was enacted in 1921, Although the Authority's operations have
evolved over time, these provisions have not been amended or updated since they were enacted,
Earlier this year, the Board of Trustees enacted a Bylaws provision establishing a three year cycle
for reviewing and updated the provision of the Code Book.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROQUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will bring the Authority's Paratransit policy
up to date to be consistent with current law and Federal Transit Administration guidance.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resoiution. Not adopting this resolution would resuit in a
Paratransit policy that remains out of date.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the November 10, 2020
Committee of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board
of Trustees. |t is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENTS: A. Red-line of Chapters 1084, 1085 and 1086
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability

of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
reguirements.

A@MM”%/% |

'W/ General Manager, Chief Exgcutlve Officer




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY




7Q

SERVICES COPDE
DIV T OO0 O91 1T







SERVICES COPDE 7QR

1085 01

oD

OV Y T OO0 OO 17

TOOOTU T







721

SERVICES COPE
DIV T OO0 o910 1g

o7










1086 04 SERVICES CODPDE 80

TOOUTUOT OV Y T OO0 O91717




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-89

REPEALING CHAPTERS 1084, 1085 AND 1086 AND ENACTING A NEW
CHAPTER 1086 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Authority
codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, portions of the Paratransit policy were last updated in 1984, 1991 and 1995:
and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that, although the Authority's operations have
evolved over time, Chapters 1084, 1085 and 1086 need to be updated to remain consistent with
current operations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Chapters 1084, 1085 and 1086 are hereby repealed.

Section 2. That new chapter 1086 is hereby enacted to read as specified in Attachment
A hereto,

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bytaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: A Chapter 1086

Adopted: November 17, 2020

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



ATTACHMENT A TO RESOLUTION

Chapter 1086
Paratransit and Accessibie Service Policy

CROSS REFERENCES

Americans With Disabilities Act — see 42 U.5.C.A. 12101 et seq.

Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles — see 49
C.F.R. Part 38

Transportation for elderly and handicapped persons - see 49 C F.R. Part 603

Americans With Disabilities Act Guidance -~ see FTA Circular 4710.1

Topic Guides on ADA Transportation — see https:/dredf.org/ADAtg/index.shtml

Fares for senior citizens and individuals with disabilities - see VEH. & OP. 840.03

1086.01 PURPOSE; SCOPE

(a) This policy is to guide Authority activities relative to its various service modes so as to
culminate in full system accessibility for individuals with disabilities.

{b) The Authority’s Paratransit service is a “shared ride”, origin-to-destination service
available for those whose who, due to a functional disability or condition, are unable to
use the fixed-route system. Eligibility may be unconditional, temparary, or under certain
conditions. Federal regulations define the ADA paratransit service area as being within
% mile of a local fixed route when that route is in operation. (Res. 1991-23. Passed 1-
22-91)

(c) The Authority will provide a "shared ride” service for grandfathered Community
Responsive Transit riders who were born on or before December 31, 1831,

(d) The Authority will provide a "shared ride" service for trips that are five (5) miles orless in
length for individuals who, due to a functional disability or condition, are unable to use
the fixed-route system and live beyond the 34 mile radius.

1086.02 GENERAL POLICIES

(a) Integrated Accessible Transit Network. The continuing development of the Authority's
accessible transit system should be guided by the same principles of distribution as
apply to general public services. Fixed rail and bus services should be the primary
service modes available to afl disabled persons who are functionally capable of using
these modes. Paratransit service should supplement the fixed route network and its
capacity dedicated to those persons who are unable to use the fixed route network due
to their ADA recognized disability.

(b) Gommunity Participation. The Authority’s efforts to implement full accessibility should
consider the interests and needs of the community through activities such as public
meetings and advisory committees.




ATTACHMENT A TO RESOLUTION

1086.03 IMPLEMENTATION
{a) Eligibility for Paratransit service will be determined in accordance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act and other applicable laws.
{b) Staff will work under administrative procedures and in compliance with current applicable
laws.

1086.04 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

(a8} The General Manager, CEQ is authorized to adopt procedures to implement this policy
and shall ensure that a Paratransit Customer Handbook is maintained. The Paratransit
Customer Handbook shall reflect the most up-to-date administrative laws, industry best
practices, FTA guidance, and Department of Justice guidance,

{b) The Paratransit Customer Handbook shall replace the ADA Complementary Paratransit
Plan enacted in Resolution No. 1992-045, and subsequently revised in Resolution Nos.
1995-009, 1997-033 and 2003-140.

(Res. 2020-XX. Passed XX-XX-20.)



Greater Cleveland interoffice Mema
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Dennis M. Clough, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong @

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
Date: November 12, 2020

Subject: Easement Request - Shoreline Storage Tunnel — Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer
District ("NEORSD")

We are seeking authorization to provide a permanent subterranean easement to NEORSD to
facilitate the construction, access and future maintenance of the Shoreline Storage Tunnel
under GCRTA property located at 10525 Dupont Avenue, Cleveland, OH, known as the Dupont
Bus Loop.

This tunnel is part of the NEORSD combined sewer overflow project being constructed
throughout the county known as "Project Clean Lake”. The tunnel system crosses under
GCRTA property at multiple points requiring muftiple easements when complete. The Board of
Trustees approved permanent easements for the Doan Valley Tunnel (2017-083) and the
Westerly Tunnel (2019-108). The proposed agreement is consistent with the previous
easemants.

The price offered by the NEORSD was determined by a certified appraiser and is consistent
with previous easemants.

We recommend that the resolution be approved.

ILB/JR



Form 100326
070397

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

GRANTEE: NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER DISTRICT

AMOUNT: $28,800.00

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.;
EASEMENT: GRANT OF PERMANENT SUBTERRANEAN EASEMENT | 2020-90

TO THE NEORSD FOR THE SHORELINE STORAGE [ Date:
TUNNEL PROJECT ON PPN 108-16-019 IN November 12, 2020

CLEVELAND, OH. —
initiator:

Programming &
Ptanning

ACTION REQUEST:
® Approval [ Review/Comment [} Information Only 2 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

8.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution seeks Board approval to grant a permanent subterranean
right-of-way and easement to the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District (‘“NEQRSD”) for the
purpose of constructing, maintaining and having access to a new combined sewer overflow
control project known as the Shoreline Storage Tunne! (the “Tunnel”) under GCRTA property
known as PPN 108-16-0189 located at the Dupont Bus Loop, Cleveland, OH.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The easement for this Tunnel project consists of 0.0915
acres or 3,985.74 square feet at a depth of one hundred and ten feet below grade. The Tunnel
is twenty-three feet in diameter. The Tunnel is part of the NEORSD combined sewer overflow
project ("CSQ") being constructed throughout Cuyahaga County known as “Project Clean
Lake”. The easement will not interfere with the present or future use of the GCRTA property
nor create any safety hazards,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The Real Estate Policies of the GCRTA specify that the Board of Trustees
must approve any permanent easement with a vatue equal to or in excess of $2.500.00. The
easement described herein is a permanent easement under Chapter 470 of GCRTA's Code of

Rules and Regulations.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The value of the easement was determined by a certified appraisal and
appraisal review to be $28,800.00. The funds received for granting this easement wilf be
deposited in the GCRTA General Fund.

ALTERNATIVES: The RTA can refuse to grant the easement.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board of Trustees apprave the resolution to
authorize granting the Permanent Right-of-way and Easement to the NEORSD,

ATTACHMENTS: A. Draft Easement
B. Easement Location Map
C. Easement Legal Description




Staff Summary & Comments
Shoreline Tunnel Easement 2020-90)
Page 2

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, tegal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

Lo e

enerananager Chief Executive Officer




ATTACHMENT A

SEWER EASEMENT

Part PPN: POY (108-16-019)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity, a regional transit authority
organized and existing as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio under Chapter 306 of the
Ohio Revised Code, acting pursuant to Resolution No. 2020- | adopted by its Board of

Trustees on . 2020 the GRANTOR herein, claiming title by or through an

instrument recorded in Volume 92-8935, Page 4, Cuyahoga County Records, for and in
consideration of the surm of Twenty-Eight Thousand Eight Hundraed Doltars ($28,800.00), and
other valuable consideration received in full satisfaction, does hereby give, grant, hargain and
convey, to the NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER DISTRICT, a regional sewer district
organized and existing as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio under Chapter 6119 of the
Ohio Revised Code, acting pursuant to Resolution No. . adopted by its Board of
Trusteeson 2020, the GRANTEE herein, the perpetual right of way and easement,
for the purposes hereinafier mentioned, under the premises described in Exhibit "A" and shown
on Exhibit "B," attached hereto and made a part hereof,

The easement and rights herein granted shall inciude the right of uninterrupted
subterranean access, to and from the herein described premises for the purposes of installiné,

constructing, reconstructing, operating, repairing, inspecting and maintaining public sanitary



sewers together with appurtenances.

Whenever work and/or maintenance of any kind is performed on the Premises pursuant
to the rights granted in this easement, the GRANTEE shall bear ail responsibility for the prompt
restoration, at the GRANTEE'S sole cost and expense, of the Premises and their environs to their
ariginal condition.

The GRANTOR hereby reserves the right to the use of said premises within the mits of
the above described permanent easement for purposes which are not herein expressly prohibited
by, and are not inconsistent with, the easement and rights herein granted, so long as said use
does not interfere with the structural integrity of said sanitary sewars and appurtenances.

GRANTEE, to the extent allowed by law, agrees to hald harmless GRANTOR and
GRANTOR's agents, representatives, employees, tenants, invitees, licensees, lessees,
sublessees and assigns from and against all GRANTEE ciaims, actions, judgments, costs,
penalties, liabilities, damages losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees
and workers’ compensation benefits, for GRANTEE's proportionate share and the proportionate
share of any entity employed or contracted by GRANTEE arising out of or resulting from the use
or exercise of the rights and privileges herein conferred.

GRANTEE shall procure and maintain at its sole cost and expense Commercial General
Liability insurance for bodily injury and property damage coverage of at least $10,000,000 per
ogcurrence of claim and a general aggregate limit of at least $10,000,000. Such insurance shall
cover all of GRANTEE's operations bath at and away from the project site. Such insurance shall
not have any exclusion for Cross Liability or Cross-Suits. In addition the insurance shall not have
any exclusion for Explosion, Collapse and Underground perils (xcu) and for construction or
demolition work within 50 feet of railroad tracks, the contractual fiability exclusion for liabiiity

assumed shall be deleted.



a, This insurénce shall include covefage for, but not ba limfted {o:
* Premises and operations.
-Froducts and completed operations.
- Persanal injury.
+ Advertising injury.
h. Such insurance shall include the following endorsements:
- Additional Insured.
+ Separation of Insureds Clause.
- Primary and Non-Contributory wording.
‘Waijver of Subrogation.

Products and completed operations insurance shall be maintained for the duration of this
Easement. GRANTOR will accept apy combination of primary CGl. along with Excess or
Umbrella policies to meet the minimum coverage requirements contained herain.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above granted permanent easement, rights and right-of-
way and its appurtenances to said GRANTEE, and {o its successors and assigns forever.

And the GRANTOR, also hbinding successors and assigns, covenants with the said
GRANTEE, and its successors and assigns, that, at and until the sealing of these presents, the
GRANTOR is well seized of the above described premises as a good and indefeasible estate in
fee simple, has good right to bargain and grant in the same manner and forms as above written,
and will warrant and defend said premises with appurienances thersunto belonging to the
GRANTEE, its succassors and assigns, against all lawfu! claims and demands whatsoever for the
purposes herein described,  Further, the undersigned warrants that he/she is the duly autherized,
empowered, and acting agent of GRANTOR for the purpose of executing and delivering to

GRANTEE alt necessary instruments to effect a good and sufficient conveyance of said easement

from GRANTOR to GRANTEE for the harginabove mentioned consideration,



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this instrument is executed this_______day of , 2020,

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

India L. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

By

Sheryl King Benford, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

STATE OF OHIO }
) 58,
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, came the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority by India L. Birdsong, its General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer, who acknowledged that she did signh the foregoing instrument and that the same is the

free act and deed of said political subdivision and the free act and deed of such officer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and notarial seat at

Ohio, this day of , 2020,

NOTARY FUBLIC



The lagal form of this instrument is approved.

Date: , 2020

Eric Luckage
Chief Legal Officer
MNartheast Ohio Regional Sewar District

NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER DISTRICT

BY:

Kyle Drayfuss-Wells Chiaf
.Executive Officer

AND:

Darneilt Brown
President, Board of Trustees

This instrument prepared by:

Julie A, Blair

Assistant General Counsel

Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District
3900 Euctid Avenue

Clevaland, Qhio 44115

(216) 881-6600



Exhibit A KS ASSOCIATES

‘Permanent Easement SST-P07
Across PPN 108-16-019
0.0915 Acres

Situated in the City of Cleveland, County of Cuyahoga and State of Ohio, and known as heing part of

Parcels 4 and 5 in Lot Spiit and Consolidation Plat of Qriginal One Mundred Acre Lot Nos. 355 and 362
as recorded in Volume 260, Page 60 of the Cuyahoga County Map Recotds. Also being part of the land
conveyed to The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authorify as recorded in Volume 13869, Page 547

(Parcel Na. 178) and Volume 92-8935, Page 4 of the Cuyahoga County Records, being more definitely
described as follows:

Commencing in northerly right of way of Dupont Avenue (40 feet wide) at the southeastarly cormer of
said Parce! 4;

Thence, along the easterly line of said Parce] 4, North 00° 51' 53" West, 106,78 feet to the True Point of
Beginning for the easement herein described;

Thence, feaving said easterly fine, South 66° 15' 30" West, 141.10 feet to the westerly line of said Parcel
o

Thence, along the westerly line of said Parcels 4 and 5, North 00° 51' 54* West, 32.56 feet:

Thence, leaving said westerly line, North 66° 15' 30" East, 124.54 feet to the easterly line of said parcet 4,
Thence, along the sasterly line of said Parcel 4 the following two courses:

South 31° 21' 53" East, 30,06 fest;

Thence, South 00° 51' 53" East, 0.22 feet to the point of beginning.

Containing within said bounds 0.0915 acres (3,986 square feet) of fand as surveyed by KS Associates,
jne. under the supervision of Trevor A, Bixter, Professional Surveyor, No, 7730 in January, 2020,

Bearings are based on the Ohio State Plane, North Zone, NAD83(2011) Grid Narth.

p AT Aot Z ey -2 o
Trevor A, Bixler, P.5.
Professional Surveyar, Ohio No. 7730

K3 ASSOCIATES
Civil Engineers + Survayors
260 Burns Road, Suite 100

Rlyria, Ol 44035

44D 365 4730

R:AT8000Vi 8090\ egal Deseriplions\SST-PO7-108-16-016.dacx




PERMANENT EASEMENT
SST-PO7

ACROSS PARCEL NO. 108—-16—-019
CITY OF CLEVELAND,

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA,
STATE OF OHIO

&

SCALE: 1"=50'
FEBRUARY 7, 2020

PERMANENT
EASEMENT
55T-PO7
0.0N5 ACRES

e
A7

g
n
0 THE GREATER
R CLEVELAND REGIONAL
= TRANSIT. AUTHORITY
 108-16=020" V. 82-B835 P. 4
THE HICKOK. ELECTRICAL e o Y. 13869 P, 547
m\s/TRQUQMEggTJ E%MPQgY " PARCEL No. 176
o o : LOT SPLIT & :
V. 9937 P. 338 PARCEL 2 1 congolIDATION PLAT POC

: V. 260 P. B0 CCMR

Exhibit B

PART OF ORIGINAL 100 ACRE LOT NOS, 355 & 362

531°21'53°E
30,08

500°651'53°E
0.22'
o
™ 108-16—-021
£| HICKOK INCORPORATED
A V. 961007 P, 18
&
ﬂ
o
i
=]
]
=

DUPONT AVE 40'

ABBREVIATIONS

CCMR
=}

PORB
POC
v

[Ep—— T ———

et i

, o
e YI—

ng‘EHDGA COUNTY MAP RECCRDS
POINT OF BEGINNING

POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
YOLUME

| KS Associates, Inc.

460 Burns Ruad, Suite 100
Elyria, GH 44035

F 440 3654730

TREVOR A. BIXLER e —_—————. | 440 365 4790
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR, OHIO NO. 7730 KS ASSOCIATES  www.ksassociates.com
R \IB000NIBOUOANCIVIL 3D 2017\CURRENT DRAWINGZ\HASE DRAWINGS\DWCO\Eosementa C30 2018\5ST_BIM _ESMT_108—16-019.dwy? M10/2020 250 PM




S 1
'
,
E
i . L
mmm»mw mmml
:
: i :
i : H o
N H :
Beaits
‘|
;
i
]
i
;
]
]
i
o A
& i L5 il
| i g
: LT |
: 1] comf
b,
a L
: Al
i
1 e
i
i
3 i
H )
hWHM B
1
! ]
i
il
. | 3 : L hi R j i “ .
3 Eolli i T iy |
i . r A ‘ : I
i . A+ 11
i !
!:”: :ﬁamﬁn H
i!|i|'! Il}l 1
phily

" i | ! :
b bR A b i |
!I : R R T i
i
i o !
s ety iII i .

444 14 by iy
kb ' ] O




ATTACHMENT C

KRS ASSOCIATES

Permanent Easement 55T-F07
Across PPN 108.16-018
0.0915 Acres

Situated in the City of Cleveland, County of Cuyahoga and State of Chio, and known as being part of
Farcels 4 and 5 in Lot Split and Consolidation Plat of Qriginal One Hundred Acre Lot Nos. 355 and 362
as recorded in Volume 260, Page GO of the Cuyahoga County Map Records. Also being part of the land
conveyed to The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority as recorded in Volume 13869, Page 547
{Parcel No. 178) and Volume 92-8935, Page 4 of the Cuyahopa Caunty Records, heing more definitely
described as follows;

Commaencing in northerly right of way of Dupont Avenue (40 feet wide) at the southeasterly corner of
said Parcel 4:

Thence, along the easterly line of said Parcel 4, North 00" 51' 53" West, 106.78 feet to the True Paint of
Beginning for the easement herein described:

Thente, lzaving said easterly line, South 66° 15’ 30" West, 141,10 feet to the westerly line of said Parcel
5

Thenee, along the westarly line of said Parcels 4 and 5, North 00° 51' 54" West, 32.56 feet;

Thence, leaving said westerly line, North 66 15°' 30" East, 124 54 feet to the easterly line of said parce| 4;
Thance, along the easterly line of said Parcel 4 the foliowing two courses;

South 31° 21" 53" East, 30.06 feet;

Thence, South 00° 57' 53" East, 0,22 feet to the point of beginning,

Containing within said bounds 0.0915 acres (3,986 square feet) of land as surveyed by K5 Associatas,
Inc. under the supervision of Trevor A. Bixler, Professional Surveyor, No. 7730 in January, 2020.

Bearings are based an the Ohio Siate Plang, North Zone, NADB3{(Z011) Grid Norh,

B I T e e e

Trevor A. Bixier, P.5,
Professional Surveyor, Qhio No. 7730

KS ASSOCIATES
Chill Enginasrs + Surwayors
260 Burns Read, Suite 100

Elyria, OM 44035

440 385 4730

RABOOVIBOSO\Legal Descrplions\SST-207- 1081 6.019.cloex




RESOLUTION 2020-90

AUTHORIZING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO GRANT TO THE NORTHEAST OHIO REGIONAL SEWER
DISTRICT (*NEORSD"} A PERMANENT SUBTERRANEAN RIGHT-OF-WAY
AND EASEMENT TO ACCESS AND MAINTAIN THE SHORELINE STORAGE
TUNNEL ON PARCEL KNOWN A5 CUYAHOGA COUNTY PERMANENT
PARCEL NUMBER 108-16-019, LOCATED AT THE DUPONT BUS LOOP ON
DUPONT AVENUE, CLEVELAND, QHIO, FOR THE PRICE QF $28,800.00

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (‘GCRTA") is the owner of
record of the property known as Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 108-16-019 at
the Dupont Bus Loop on Dupont Avenue in Cleveland, Ohio (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District (‘NEQRSD"} wishes to
construct a combined sewer overflow control project known as the Shoreline Starage Tunne!
(the "Tunne!"}; and

WHEREAS, the NEORSD will require entrance to the Property for construction, access
and maintenance of the Tunne! by way of a permanent subterranean right-of-way and
easement; and

WHEREAS, the permanent right-of-way and easement covers 0.0915 acres or 3,885.74
square feet of the Property; and

WHEREAS, the permanent right-of-way and easement will not interfere with GCRTA's
present or future use of the Property nor create any safety hazards: and

WHEREAS, the fair market value of the permanent right-of-way and easement has been
determined by a certified appraisal.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, QOhio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
grant a permanent subterranean right-of-way and easement to the Northeast Qhio Regional
Sewer District ("NEORSD") under Permanent Parcel Number 108-16-019, located at the Dupont
Bus Loop on Dupont Avenue (the “Property”), Cleveland, Ohio for the price of $28,800.00.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute all documents required to grant the permanent right-of-way and easement to NEORSD
and ailow access to the Property.

Section 3. That the funds received for granting this permanent right-of-way and
easement will be deposited in the GCRTA General Fund.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: November 17, 2020
President

Aftest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Fjo7F adeq Ucday MNussay

=0T [ T EEUOIEET § SSPBEATTEZ § 0 SETCNSNEE  § MEOOAT MASTI BEEE T MUY 50 MTHISY 5 QNN WHINED - GIAITI3Y HEYD WL0L

RS Ik RO£°550 rSEr 2T FL'LTBET WO L HEEHLE ¥E5'I5T YEE'ESTF HETD 40 STIHMHDS M5HLO AN SINTWESHERINITY Fu i EArs
[EE - wIIETIT HET LT - B TETEETY . o) Sl R EDEE]
X0 HETST BRGLAE'T SEL'EFET 31 e33R ST¥'tE [ 5145573 SNESIMT TSN
AT HIPETS TGRS =Tl ] HED'C - - YETIT TIPSy SHILREIAC Trddaad
4B RICES GEO'TSAET o R rpid HHG - - - TR 790G 'A1%15 1eskTaa] TINTREZHIIN IALNSATHd
A [%89°6€] b | FFEIBL AT E [35E€ L8] 95Ty 1T LEEFL [FOL91 To00T "ILVLS 503k LMANISEE %I LNvED
A0 w5 LTL EEE 2R IEALT HIOE - - - SEANATH KrL INTI O SsE 130

THEVS 10 SITAM0S BAHLG GH T LINF WIS TRIITS

HIED [=00-1] ETHERS'Y TOE'Z16Z HIED x5 wa] TLE6IE CAFRE AENIATY HIHLO TP LOLERS
HE0l [y 28T 0/5'I6 BN WS ES EL’E £A5"ST EHIG
HITC ey 4 S6CBTE 525’938 =300 7L E8) 5947237 PLETL JWSINI LSTEINI
] [Z£5'TE) 98TIE bELETE ES l=agas] S5 BE9°0T G TN
E1ES] A SE oaLELT ELETBE %5 - - oHTE SIEOISSIETPDD §531 SLHSIY SN Y
w=Er w5 LT eSS L PEZREST wiay [=ar9i) [ ere] ELHI SHORTSIF NSIFSHOISSTIROD SRS LEI AT

SHRGEATE GRS

Rhe'1S [REE SSETIERSY ISORLE LT REL'GE EN T PRSI T 9T 58T S30ISANS INETHIAC 1wLD LA
TG [saz-al SSE'PFERLT TaOrHed e T WELEL [y PRELILLT TST LSBT Xl 350 2 SIS

"EIRGISENS WL VEITO

%509 1T LE) ESt'SHE'TE ST LSE'NE ETE] [3E8'55) ElTS'E oy TR ORI TALOLENS
SAOE %5T T TE5 6% TEESISE SEET [CICE ET T OBE'TE SAILLINIIL THEOW
SEFD et CSR'EENE PEETa'E WAL {%aTest SHEEES COO'ET Ssyd-A
[ ] - - THTBIE s tun] - - mer'e SIEFOEHYS IHITALE ~ 050
®IET AT SEPUIRETL 50" HEDT ISR ORI TES SET'LEF SETVS AL EER
%y f el ¥ [EATEE¥T 5 [BEAR'E 5 WPGT %irsr) ELA'SeF'T 3 IEs H 53dvs HTYD

THVS YIORTS TS

IWINI0K  9NYHIR ERTESoN aLs [rITy Witid0%  I9NTHIE . HINOW HINON
ENIEHMD ELaZ oice ZATHEFD U5 HOIEd LHIEHM

SEDE “TE YIBO LI &Y 0207 "£§ BIFELI0 A30N3 COIBEE IHLHOL
QMO TFAINID - Hirdh EOMHA (il GIHTN0T Gan a3 HEw 30k 15043
AAHGHAMY LISRYLL 10 MDIS38E T3130310 43y I8 IHL




T | SBey

SOODOT LT SR SETTRS'SEE §  EBORORIEZ % KOOI [T O BMEPIS'PE 0§ BREGEETE %
=511k SLD'IER i 965 TSE'ET KIELT REDEIT G 55T [ )

KA ET - GITLIETIT - KET LT - REET Y -

10 REFETET SELSRER TE0EST REFO HEGESS 85T E¥0'E

=310 . SEr's1Y - 560 - LLTA N -

XPES HPUTS CO00AE TR EELTIFET =0 - - -

%I At FrT9EL 5l 1] 18] 253’1 SELRE
SIED =101 LI LALT aE9"rEs HIED - : -

L] VRITTE| A P ALY b ®IED XAT L3k T0'8E ST IEE
HEFD (RArER] [T TR L *AET [T 22551 [
XaT0 (%355 S255a [l (1 RAFC %5562 Fi'sT EYTES
»ATC ([xta-gE) PELEID I05'9EE AP (250°8L] FERaT TEa'sy
RITE HATET] £LE'TRE Fat HET'E - 000 TE -

I HBICL PEE'2S5'T FIIEL HING REEEE6) 5T | Ta ]
ElRs] [RERT] S0P RT o TSGR T HEeEL HIDE LT SITITG'TT
APE'TE (EE8T) ISEFLLPT PEATEL RS HELEL ELTE TST'0!5"Es GITATCEL
BEH'S [3T45]] ST LSENE B SEESE L) Exsawel GIIHIT IMEGE
LT (Ha3ar) ILESIOE 714 'BEE'Y RE'T 13:55a) CELSHE STESIE
HEE'E [%PAFT) 056571 SIATIET G [ 44a] COU'EL rIoTetr
4 (350°p2) EBT'93B EAE9EEE RING LT EE] 2EL'E PEFESE
HIBT 3t ey 565 0" SLPIE0E HEN'T [35E6°5%] SER LAY PELREE

%= (LB 5E] TBE LTS £ ®ELTHET 5 HEDE [ > TEe'spL £ BEFTIETT B
IWEOLAG%  IONTHIR aL. 139ane aLs TrEL 0% TN HikOY HImRDWS
AnaHurs RO oEaz LNFHHM MISYOD Haim

TN TrdINGD - 1F00E G BIVANDT 0301103 HSYD 30 1M0dIH

IO "LE WARCAI0 FIANT O0143d FJHL B0

AIYOHIAY USKYEL I¥ROIDITH GHITATID dALwIND IHL

uarey sRuaAy

Qmnd ToaaD - Q3n 3328 A3 sl

HEW2 40 SIS HAHED ey SINHNISBNENGEE TeLOLENS
150 5360 1WE2034
S241325 SNORNETIRN
BIRTLEISSY DULYEIE0 Tes=0d2

[HO:Rwsy 12200 TEYLS

ToyI0 ) EINENALNA A TAGZ2IANG 6

CHOuwn: a0 "TETLS "THA034] INAFISHNBIITS ZHED
SONEZY XoL IRVADEd AN 05

P AL STONRIS MFHIO ONY SIS SNAEREY

ANMEANTH YIHED TRICLENS

YIHLO

SO 530N

SRICONT TP LI

SHOISEINIWGS 5531 SLHSIY SNIu

SIS SIMIVEO IS LRSI NS DMISI LY AN
FONIATY BIRIE

S3ICEENE DMLLNEIL0 THLRLENS
XYL N F SETE
SRS DL IO

STd¥d HIONISS T THLRARTS
DRUFYL TET

i T

SCYTIYS ZHIANET - O50
ST LIV

S3dvd HEw

AU FIONTISTVY



Wli' D

b0
WHELD
HBED
L]
%%SL0
WS5L0
%l D
wsL0
Fotrl 0
F Yot

WlZD
FLTAN]
WS L0
HESD
%5L0
Sl 0
WiE'E

B0
WsLi0
%00
%SLT
W0
Yl 0
YFED
G40

ﬁmmr’ammm v o

o m

Mo m
—

[ 0 B O ot T T o B ]

YebF0

A
DT
Y03 E
W0
AN

ad7314

G6E

Big

LEZ
0g
€

Zio 1 sbed

ALEHNLYIN 1S3HIIMN
A0VYUIAAY OL SAVT OQ3Inuoov

FAYHIAY

& 0181828
0% LLE'82E' 1% £ OIHO 40 3L¥iS
0% F5U'E6E £ MNYE AT%
grLTes SEELBGE'ELS
[ g48'151% £ MNYE ATH
0% LEL0TE £ HNEE ATM
0% ZOFEErs £ MNYE ATH
0% 0B2'CLR'es £ O{HO 40 3i¥1S
0% FOL'FEES £ HNEE AT
0% GE1'9CR'0ES £ HHC 40 2571sS
T BALERS SiY'LB0'SE  ZROL SNV 100N 134148
I90'8¥S
0% BEG'E¥S £ CHMO 40 31¥1S
0g Di0'es £ SIAMS-HNYE AT
SFE'vS SLO'ETE'sS
3 LLEB'SLES £ MMYE AT
0% GUZ'A08'FE £ CIKG 40 31%1S
arE' v 000’000 LS Z6O0L MNWA MOLDNMILNMH
a% SLLGEE'E5ES
i3 #29/06'0LE £ MNWE ATH
0% IED'¥rE £ HNYE HOLONILMNH
0% fEE'SELE £ MM ATH
0% GES'ES £ HPYE JNg
0% . ERSER0TLLL £ OIHC 40 3LYIS
0g LT [ e £ CIHO 40 35718
05 Treiis £ HNYE ATH
ZSP'0E% 895285415
£92'vrs SIE'GEE IS oEs Wplwd NO1OMI1RNH
£95'9% Zlt'1vEs SEH WNYE NOLIOMILNDH
ZLE'GLE FICBLIS 2sd NYE NOLOMNIERAH
DEF'OFL SIG'ZPEI8 E£S WS NOLOMIMAH
oS EGTLLTELS £ HNYE NOLDMNIENGH
IVLIONIED  SAYO NOILNLILSNI
TYLOL WxaL

CIHD "Yv.1S
HI3 A3H

H33 ATH-MISYH HOLYD
HO3-1NYED
I3 AHHIEYIH w207
CIHD HY.LS-H24vIA 19200
"33 ATN-LO0V 1830 6102
OHO UWLS-100% L9303 8102
86244

OHO HYES
LNINIIHOSNT AT

23 AOx
CIHG YWES
WHA

H23 A3H
SN0V XYL 53773
ONNd ALALLDY 234043
LA AINCIN HOCHH IS
SEAYIOIHO ¥vis
OfHO HYLS
LAWN AZH- L33V LNYHIH3M

WNNIEd 04 T8 AxnSy3ul
WHNEd 804 1118 ARNSY3xL
WAINTYd B04 T8 AdNSYyIs:

0E0EZ!L
QE0EEsL :

(0rda 7] 38
L rArA 2N
QEQERLIEL
QDb
OE0ERIES
CEOZITEL
BEOLPE

7LV TALA) 2
0Z0Z/TIEL

Qe
OZ0ZiElE )
LZ0EmLrg

OZ0EeEL
CEQLEiEL
ozoZIsE L
OE0ZfesE
AL
QEDEFTE L
0E0Z e

LEOT/ORIES
ZEOLNEIG
FECEAEG

WRAEYD H0d T8 ASNSYIH] (20T

13HHYIN ASNOW
LHINNYLSHKI

0202 1€ Y380190 40 SY
SINTWLSIANI AHNSYIHL 20 AHOLINIAN]
ALRHOHLNY LISNVHL T¥NOI9TH ANY13AT TS YILv3yo

OCDER LS
31v]

ALTANLYI

DE0LI0E0L
QEgLioen:

0ZGZAEDE
DE0E/0Ei03
QZQZTI0E/08
DZ0Emed
QE0EmEl0L
QZ0E0Ei0E
GE0LILLE

O NOISNIS TYLOL

Om-d NOISHad
ONAF HOLTW T207 TYLoL

ONNd HJAYW TWo0T

QN LNIW3DHOINE MY TLOL

QEQEOENO
QZ0ZE0L

OE02ACEH
0E02MoEDL
FLOEEE

OZ0EIED]
QEOERETL
0Z0ZIGEa |
QEOEGEmDL
QE0EoET
AV LTSN
OZ0ZrSEL

GNNA LNIWIIHCIMNG A
ONAD FONVEHASN TVLI0L

ONMA 33MYHNSHI

ONAd TYHYINID TYL0L

QN4 T¥EIMNT0

ONNS INIWIHLTH TNOE TWLOL

BLOZMIG
802G
GLOZEG
GLOZMNG
OZDEGEDL

3Lvd
HEYHIHNd

ONNd LRIWIH 1T ONCE
e[ 135



Y820

BP0
Y]
WSL0
W00
YPe L
Mil'E

%SLT

%EL0

OT3A ALIHNLYIE LSIMIINI
JOVHIAY QL SAYO Q3ansEIov

60 o Y M

£8L
gas

£

FOVHIAY

9Z8'80Z%  SBO'9S0'ZIZS

It B

ZFol
LEDL

£
SAYG

gra'ves AT R
[iL:3 OLFEBE LEE
0% [
0% D0S'SZ0'ES
giL'Ees SI3'160'58
D48 EGE {00'800'ES
oS TOLED'OBE'LY
0% LLo'cas’1s

WdOMiEd
WEOL

Wl

7 jo gz sbey

G0 20 31V1S
" A3M
HNYE ONd

SNY0TIN 124115
SMYI20IN 134145

HMEE ATH
NOLLAEILSNE

OIHO HY1S
HI3 A3
LN AZHOW HD0EHY]
SREE
[ZHEE:

H33 ATH
ANZWTHLSNI

020Z "€ ¥3H0LO0 40 SY

SLINIWISIANI AHNSVIHL 40 AHOLNIANI

HTAVATA N
CE0ZfE L
CE0ZE L
EE0EFEH
ETOTISTLL

GEOZITILL

FLvad
ALlHNIYW

ALMOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDIH NV IIAZ 1D HILY3IHD

CEOTIOEAL
CEOZAEDL
CEQZHEML
DE0ILE
BLOZIERL

GEDZIOETL

J1va
ISYHIHN

SANN4 T3V V101
QNN SAHTSTH TRICT

QM 3AH3SIY
ONOE TYidYsd Vi Telod

QNI T EIdYD YLl
Ohind



LR IEETES peanboy opiey 195 ATSIO0W

LZTOZEYIS {0207 40 apisy 1ag) asue|eg Jwaany

oenlsiney puog

DO'0LLLSTOLS | DO'SSE'BOFELS | OODOD'BIS'CLS DO'SSE'SPETS | OUSSE'ErFR'ZS | 00'0s o0'ssg'arR'ed  00000'DIR'OLES SpUOR {ejoL
IO BO0'SOFE oG 000558 | O3 0G0'S08 00 0o0nsL o0000'0s.L oo 00C00°CEL OIO0D'000'0E  BE0Z 2o ThAY KB SES-EIIT S3Ueg
J0°C01 TR Qo 0s0'eEe Q0000 J0705G'SE CO0S0's/E oog EANS AR oopon'tHO'sl 1202 sag ATY AB | 59{eS-9i(T ssUag
0 G068 0E0"S QO0SH D8 O OG0'06R' J00Sr 0e0' |- 00QSH 080" oog GRS 080 o000l 0SZ'Pr  BEOT DaQ AT KB | SEHEE-GL0E Sy
Q' GoR'Sss OO 086 LS on000'ors J0DEE 2 COQes's Tk 0ogEs’s 00OG'oRS  0Z0Z g hay XE| SHES-HEL0Z SSHES
J00E9E5S'e QG 6ZR'OSE'E 000050’ GSES ROE G'szE'L0e oo DOsER'I0E OUQON'09E L ST0F e hBY XB| SERS-YFLLE S3Ues
OGO 428 OO’ 009'E6+'E ooocoaslL s a0 00g'cEe CO'OBY'EEE coQ 0O'009'tEE OOOOC'DEREL  ¥ZOZ 980 ASY XB | SH2S-10E s3ueg
174 GEOEILEL OZOZILIEL DEQTAITL QZOTILIS 0Z0LiLia 0Z0Z/Lr9 EBEOZFERZL AEY spuog
Jawiannbay | puswasinbay BEqeieg 1=gefey Audtuaamnbay mlgeied Bgeieg Bupuessinn AW
aag EoL SIS G20 rediJiite 1SIdEL alADS Qa0 jedi3ttid saasiUg tediautd [eyo] (L

0Z0Z '3£ ¥I80L00 40 SY
SNLYLS ONY I1NC3IHIS I2AM3ES 1830
ALMOHLAY LISNYHL TYNOIOSH ANT13ATID H3lvaus



YeB LD
e

%TG |
%L
%Op |
%O L
%St
%Sl
%551
%551
%891
%591
%SL 4
%541
FXSREDN

ASMUYW  QUVONYLS 3ovdaIAY
6L0Z

W20
%l2T

HELL
RET L
%FEL
RLLE
%912
HOLE
WBEEL
%ltF'E
WREFT
St
%EE
HEFE
#O1EIA

WETT

%00Z
%S0T
WEL'E
WEEE
WFEET
%EET
WETE
WEEE
YWBL'E

WHZTE .

®RIL
WEEE
EREITY

09R'9B'2E 124'GSFERLE
SPEELEE FELPPOGSES
EFE'LSTE 8457 L05'S5ES
TEF'a0Es 163'3.8'Z0LS
8C6'TCTt {BL'CEE'YGLS
LB9'1428 415 grdele Fi IR
bl 'BOES BEFTLLBGES
wi'eees LLLFED'CEES
80%'09TE IEZ'859'651E
BI0FOTS QOE'EST LTLS
SPO'EELE 1B EOS'EELE
EDE'BELS LBZBOL'FTLS
EOE'EGLE LLi'BBE' SIS
J3NHYS dONYIVE
ASTHEINI JOVHIAY

ilg

A

YebOD
YOG
YEOT
YEOD
%d0G
Vb0
YakO G
Wl D
WELE
i
#a73A

L3MEVN GuHVONYES  JOVHIAY

AR

SaGl D

%ELD
SELD
Skl'd
S%0ED
HES'D
SLLh
%10l
SS2L
SESL
Y|
#JT3IA

pISIA ABQ £ pung Asuoly Ainsee)] Gy SIEnGe PRI SWEN &

'SNE AMNS2SI ]| Lo G oj SPIeL Juseanbs usdnoo sBisse Gumop &

XSO (HIANN) B340 SOTIA IOVHIAY VIY

0L SEREEOES
A Tl piz'8Ts
BBED yIO'ETS
LLgED) LLL'BES
YWirid SCL'BELS
B%GEL D £1F'5023
WOR'G S0i'PETS
%il'l o%e'PIEs
AT ) (AT
GE6 | EE0LLLS
kG L 5B'90es
=1y RENREE]
1SIHIIN

(T4

0202 '+€ HIHOLD0 HONOYHL LvE OL HYIA
AONVIWUHOIEId LNIWISIANE 20 AHVIAWNS

ALHOHLIAY LISNYHL TYNCOIOTH ANV 13AT 1D HI1vauD

Eri'LET 964

SZ6'BYL'297%
D00 ¥or'ores
FEF'GSL'EEES
AL LETE
PP RS TLTS
DO0'09E 8%
DOD0ZL05:%
DOC'STLE5LS
BS'gEe i s
OG'SZOEGLS
IONY 1vd
IOVHIAY

JLY3 GE 8v3A

H3IgaW3E53d

HIEWIAON

350130

HIAWILd3IS

1znony

Aanr

EL: AN

AW

THdY

HOWWN

AdVHE3S

AHMTINYT
HENGH



HBEUES
LZLPS
458
BR'GE
POO%

95'0E2'091%

L00ZE'9LLS

1570298
[ReRiri

18'852'618%
B3'cZE'098%
SELLBLE

8L EZe
LSSPOVLE
00893
18°0vS'vE
0EgLs

90'veY'SCLE
82818 ¥0LE
SEZALS
5SZ013

g0 1 abed

A1%0 Ol HYSA 6L02
J1%3 31 H¥3A DI0E

G202 ¥Y3BOLO0C

JIv3 01 HY3A SLOE
J1vG 01 B¥3A OE0E
Q20T H3BOLOG

3193 QL HY3ABL0E
J1¥3 04 Hv3A 0202
0202 4380120

J1¥3 OL gv3A BLEE
J193 O JV¥3A 0202
0Z0Z 380420

OIHOHY LS
INNOD2Y d33MMS HNYE ATH
AN ANIWIDECINT e

OIHOHYLS
ONNd FONTHNSNI

ANMODDY d33ME ANYE ATH-LNNOOIV LNYHIHIN
JUBED SYHEYI-OIHO HYLS

INNOIIY d33MS HNYE ATH

OiHOHYLS

INMOITY XYL ST T¥S-NOLINILNNH

ONNd TFAENTD

LTIAEYIN AINOW NOLONILNNH
ONNA INFWIHILTIH aNCg

0Z6€ 3801200
(SISVYE HSYD) SONINYYI tNIWLSIANI NO L¥04TH
ALIHOHLAY LISNVYHL TYNOIDIYE GNY1ZATTD HILYINHD



0¥ 08L°29%

S 0EresLE
LEELE
IEELS

FL 0485
D9ESES.
i
BE LS

Or'6L8'E2S
P ITPELS
LO'BSES
gy 0%
SCAGLE

¥0'vZ0'09vS

TLEIY'EOSSE
EEBILG'ES
PS8
80°269'¢$
£2'888

£ Jo z abeg

J1¥3 01 H¥3IAELLE
J1¥a 0L H¥3A DEGE
Q202 H3R0120

31vd Ol HY3A 6L
3193 04 434 0202
J20¢ 43804100

J1%¥3 01 HY3ABLGE
3190 01 Jv3A 0202
Je02 H380L130

3193 0L U¥3A 6L0E
J1¥3 0L ¥¥3aA 0202
Q202 H380120

0202 ¥39C100

ANMOIIY 433AME HNYH ATH
GNN4 TYLidY0 v.1d

LIHUYIN AINOW HNYE AZH
INAODIV ALAILDY 33ACTdINE

ANMQDY d3IAAS HNYE AT
OIHOHYLS
GHMNd NOISN3d

INNOIIY d3IRAS WNYE AT
1930 8LOE-0IHOHY LS
QHOHYLS

aNNd HOLYIWN 79200

(S1SVE HSY2) SONINYYI LNIWLSIANI NO LH04ad
ALPMOHLNY LISNYYL TYNOIDIY ONVYIZATTD HILVYIHD



£ io ¢ sbieg

%00 T %8L0 'BINIWISIANI NO 0T3IA IOVHIAY
TFLET'06LS 576'80L'Jo28 {1S09) IONYTYE INIMISIANI JOVHIAY
SEB'CE0'ES 5:2'92% QINHYI IFOON] LSIHI N
gea'enzs 9Z8'802% 8ot Mg X
{rzz'coegt (LEO'EEZS) DNINNID3E
J1SIHALINI d3NHED0V
LSZ'BEL'ES LO¥'Z5% {SISYE HSYD) 02AZ03H LSIHIINI
J1va ol ¥3I80L00
dY3A 0Z0Z
§0°ZLZGEZ'Y 3190 OL 4¥3A 6102
S5°0LZ° 88T 31vad OL HY3A 0202
ST LOP'ZSE 0Z0Z 4390120 SANN= 1Y 19101
08°0PE' 2604 3iv¥0 OL UY3A 5102
BB 08" PGS 31Y0 OL U¥3A 9208
LYS02'628 0202 4390100
BL GBS - LNNODOY d33MS MNYE AT
00'005'S2S a1H4
BP'9/9'cs CIHOHVLS

ONNd 3AY3SIH
Q202 ¥380.120
{SISYE HSYD) SONINYYI INIWNLSIANI NO 1H0dTY
ALROHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIDIY ANVI3AT T HIALYIND



ALENLYA
SOVHIAY

HBED
LTl
WEL0
W50
%520
%Ed 0
OTalA
IOVUIAY

%00°¢01
Tt L
Yol LG

%BES'LE
%900
gl

I¥.iolL

40 ENIDH3d

BT L6 LOTS
aoo'sle'els
ES5E'PBE'ELS
FZLLG9'eLEd
IBL'EBLS
ZF1L'EREOLY
LNACWY
EhlE:

e S ]

¥20'950'292%
99F /SF'BLS
LGB'YREELS
¥ZL'E59'C1 28
£6E'69LS
LPL'EBE'OLS
TVdIONRd

020Z "1£ ¥3A0LI0 40 SY

OIM03L80d INFWLSIAN] 40 NOILISOdWOD

GO0 d juailLsaal) |E10 ]
SSUNIES JUBLILEIBACS S
Wnoosy aley ipesn sbuuieg
Qo =g
LN0IY daams Hueqg Ao
UNOooY Eaey Asuopy
JUBLINSU]



